
Committee Agenda  
 

 

1 

 

 
AREA PLANNING SUBCOMMITTEE SOUTH 
Wednesday, 30th May, 2012 
 
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook Road, Loughton, Essex 

IG10 3JA 
  
Room: Dining Hall 
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer: 

Rebecca Perrin   (The Office of the Chief Executive) 
Tel: 01992 564532   Email: 
democraticservices@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 

 
Members: 
 

As appointed at Annual Council on 22 May 2012 
 
 
 

 
A PLAN SHOWING THE LOCATION OF RODING VALLEY HIGH SCHOOL IS 

ATTACHED TO THIS AGENDA. A BRIEFING WILL BE HELD FOR THE CHAIRMAN, 
VICE-CHAIRMAN AND GROUP SPOKESPERSONS OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE, AT  

6.30 P.M. PRIOR TO THE MEETING 
 

 
 

WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area then it is possible that the recording 
cameras will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image 
will become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any 
concerns about this then you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic 
Services Officer before the meeting on 01992 564249. 
 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 30 May 2012 
 

2 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast;  
 
2. Members are reminded of the need to activate their microphones before 
speaking; and  
 
3. the Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be filmed live for 
subsequent uploading to the Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing. 
 
If you are seated in the public seating area it is possible that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast although Officers will try and avoid this. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you have any concerns 
about this you should speak to the Webcasting Officer.” 
 

 2. ELECTION OF CHAIRMAN AND APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIRMAN   
 

  To note the Chairman and Vice-Chairman of the Planning Sub-Committee as 
appointed at Annual Council 22 May 2012. 
 

 3. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 5 - 10) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached together with a plan 

showing the location of the meeting. 
 

 4. MINUTES  (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee. 
 

 5. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   
 

 6. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 7. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 30 May 2012 
 

3 

 8. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 25 - 78) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider planning applications 
as set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers:  (i)  Applications for determination – applications listed on the 
schedule, letters of representation received regarding the applications which are 
summarised on the schedule.  (ii)  Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of 
officers inspecting the properties listed on the schedule in respect of which 
consideration is to be given to the enforcement of planning control. 
 

 9. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 10. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion: To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government 
Act 1972, the public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of 
business set out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Act (as amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 
Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 

Paragraph Number 
Nil Nil Nil 

 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement: Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules 
contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers:  Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of 



Area Planning Subcommittee South Wednesday, 30 May 2012 
 

4 

the Constitution define background papers as being documents relating to the subject 
matter of the report which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 
 



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 3

Page 5



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 6



Area Plans Subcommittee South – Location Plan

PDF created with pdfFactory Pro trial version www.software-partners.co.uk

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



Area Planning Subcommittee South  2012-13 
Members of the Committee: 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

Cllr James 
Hart 

Cllr Girling 

Cllr Angold-
Stephens 

Cllr 
Chambers 

Cllr Lion Cllr 
Markham 

Cllr 
Mohindra 

Cllr Pond 

Cllr 
Thomas 

Cllr Ulkun Cllr 
Wagland 

Cllr Cohen Cllr Finn Cllr Jennie 
Hart 

Cllr 
Knapman 

Cllr Watson Cllr Chana 

Cllr Wright 

Cllr 
Cochrane 

Cllr Leonard 

Cllr 
Sandler 

Cllr Wixley 

Cllr Mann Cllr Murray Cllr Mann 

Page 9



Page 10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee 

South 
Date: 25 April 2012  

    
Place: Roding Valley High School, Brook 

Road, Loughton, Essex IG10 3JA 
Time: 7.30  - 9.04 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Hart (Chairman), Ms S Watson (Vice-Chairman), K Angold-Stephens, 
R Barrett, K Chana, Mrs T Cochrane, R Cohen, D Dodeja, C Finn, Ms J Hart, 
A Lion, G Mohindra, Mrs C Pond, Mrs P Richardson, B Sandler, P Spencer, 
H Ulkun, Mrs L Wagland and D Wixley 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

 
  

  
Apologies: J Knapman, J Markham and Mrs J Sutcliffe 
  
Officers 
Present: 

S Solon (Principal Planning Officer), A Hendry (Democratic Services Officer), 
S G Hill (Senior Democratic Services Officer) and L Eales (Youth Council 
Administrator) 
 

  
 

81. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. 
 

82. MINUTES  
 

RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 28 March 
2012 be agreed. 

 
83. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs T 
Cochrane and Ms J Hart, declared personal interests in the following item of the 
agenda by virtue of being members of the Loughton Resident’s Association. The 
Councillors had determined that their interests were not prejudicial and would remain 
in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/2371/11 – 22 Forest Road, Loughton;  
• EPF/0222/12 – 60 Deepdene Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/0339/12 – 29 The Broadway, Loughton. 

 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors D Wixley, 
Mrs Pond, K Angold-Stephens declared a personal interest in the following items of 
the agenda by virtue of being members of Loughton Town Council and the Loughton 

Agenda Item 4

Page 11



Area Planning Subcommittee South  25 April 2012 

2 

Residents Association. The Councillors had determined that their interests were not 
prejudicial and that they would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the 
applications and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/2371/11 – 22 Forest Road, Loughton;  
• EPF/0222/12 – 60 Deepdene Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/0339/12 – 29 Broadway, Loughton. 

 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor C Finn 
declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda by virtue of being a 
member of the Loughton Residents Association. The Councillor had determined that 
his interests were not prejudicial and that he would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/2371/11 – 22 Forest Road, Loughton. 
 
(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs P 
Richardson declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda by virtue 
of being a member of Loughton Town Council. The Councillor had determined that 
her interests were not prejudicial and that she would remain in the meeting for the 
consideration of the applications and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/2371/11 – 22 Forest Road, Loughton;  
• EPF/0222/12 – 60 Deepdene Road, Loughton; and 
• EPF/0339/12 – 29 The Broadway, Loughton. 

 
(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor D Wixley 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda, by virtue of being  a 
Tree Warden. The Councillor had determined that his interest was not prejudicial and 
he would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
 

• EPF/0417/12 – Block A, Hawsted, Buckhurst Hill; 
• EPF/0568/11 – Land to the South of Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill; and 
• EPF/0567/11 – Land to the South of Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill. 

 
 
(f) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors, G Mohindra, 
K Chana, L Wagland, A Lion and B Sandler declared a personal interest in the 
following items of the agenda by virtue of being members of Chigwell Parish Council. 
The Councillors had determined that their interests were not prejudicial and that they 
would remain in the meeting for the consideration of the applications and voting 
thereon: 
 

• EPF/0161/12 – 6 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell;  
• EPF/0071/12 – 6 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell; and 
• EPF/0160/12 – 6 Chigwell Rise, Chigwell. 

 
 
(g) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors S Watson 
and H Ulkun declared personal interests in the following items of the agenda by 
virtue of being members of Buckhurst Hill Parish Council. The Councillors had 
determined that their interests were not prejudicial and that they would remain in the 
meeting for the consideration of the application and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0417/12 – Block A, Hawsted, Buckhurst Hill; 
Page 12



Area Planning Subcommittee South  25 April 2012 

3 

• EPF/0568/11 – Land to the South of Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill; 
• EPF/0567/11 – Land to the South of Roding Lane, Buckhurst Hill; and 
• EPF/0374/12 – 10 Devon Close, Buckhurst Hill. 

 
(h) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor G Mohindra 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of EFDC 
owning the land. The Councillor determined that his interests were prejudicial and 
that he would leave the meeting for the consideration of the application and voting 
thereon: 
 

• EPF/0339/12 – 29 The Broadway, Loughton. 
 
 
 

84. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was noted that there was no other urgent business for consideration by the Sub-
committee. 
 

85. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That the planning applications numbered 1 – 10 be determined as set out in 

the attached schedule to these minutes. 
 

86. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that schedules of planning applications determined by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development under delegated authority since the 
last meeting had been circulated and could be inspected at the Civic Offices. 
 
 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0417/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Block A 

Hawsted 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5SS 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/11/93 
T3 - Cedar - Fell 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535551 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
The Committee made clear that the replacement tree or trees secured by condition 1 of the 
permission should be substantial and very significant. 
 
 

1 A replacement tree or trees, of a number, species, size and in a position as agreed 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted within one month of the 
implementation of the felling hereby agreed, unless varied with the written 
agreement of the Local Planning Authority. If within a period of five years from the 
date of planting any replacement tree is removed, uprooted or destroyed, dies or 
becomes seriously damaged or defective another tree of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

 
 
 

Minute Item 85

Page 5Page 15



Report Item No:2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0568/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to the south of Roding Lane 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 6BJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: TPO/EPF/110/10 
W1 - Woodland management as specified in attached 
management plan 
 

DECISION:  Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=526550 
 
 REASON 
 
 

1 Realisation of the potential benefits of the proposal would depend upon a sustained 
period of management following implementation of the initial works.  The lack of any 
agreement to such management means that the Local Planning Authority has no 
reasonable surety that the necessary operations will be undertaken for a sufficient 
period for any significant level of benefit to be achieved.  It is therefore preferable for 
the wood to be allowed to continue to develop naturally.  The proposal is therefore 
contrary to policies LL7 and LL9 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

 

Page 6Page 16



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0567/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land on south side of Roding Lane,  

opposite junction with Rous Road  
and adjoining Buckhurst Hill Football Club 
Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Carrying out of site management works to land, consisting of 
clearing ditch, digging out of pond, and levelling of earth 
mounds. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=526549 
 
 
REASON 
 
 

1 The site lies in the Metropolitan Green Belt, is subject to a blanket Tree Preservation 
Order, and constitutes a valuable environmental resource close to the urban 
settlement of Buckhurst Hill. Realisation of the proposed benefits of the proposal 
would depend upon a sustained period of management following the implementation 
of initial works. The lack of any agreement to such management means that the 
Local Planning Authority has no reasonable surety that the necessary operations will 
be undertaken for a sufficient period for any significant level of benefit to be 
achieved. It is therefore preferable for this wood to be allowed to develop naturally. 
The proposal is therefore contrary to policies GB2A, NC4, NC5, DBE9, and LL10 of 
the Epping Forest District Local Plan and Alterations.  

 
 

Page 7Page 17



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2371/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 22 Forest Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1DX 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Forest 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: 'Change of use of former tool shop (A1 retail shop) to A3 
(restaurant/café) use - amended proposal now showing 
details of refuse store and extraction duct. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=532991 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 
 

1 By reason of its siting and poor accessibility, the proposed means of storing refuse 
on site is inadequate and likely to cause harm to the amenities of the locality.  The 
proposal is therefore contrary to policy DBE9 of the adopted Local Plan and 
Alterations. 
 

2 By reason of its design and siting, the proposed means of odour control is likely to 
be inadequate.  As a consequence the use is likely to cause harm to the amenities 
of the locality.  The constrained nature of the site is such that it is not appropriate to 
deal with this matter by condition.  The proposal is therefore contrary to policy DBE9 
of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

3 Since the premises has recently been let for a use within Use Class A1 it is not likely 
that any permission given for use for purposes within Use Class A3 would be taken 
up in a reasonable timescale.  The fact of an unimplemented consent is likely to 
threaten the longer term future of the new retail use and cause anxiety for the 
occupants of the site and neighbouring properties.  As a consequence, the grant of 
planning permission would be harmful to the amenities of the occupants of the site 
and neighbouring properties. 

 
 
 

Page 8Page 18



Report Item No 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0161/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Chigwell Rise 

Chigwell 
Esssex 
IG7 6AB 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Removal of condition 8 of planning permission EPF/0594/10 
to allow D1 use without employee living on site. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534627 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The condition continues to be necessary to secure the interests of the character of 
the locality and to minimise the demand for on-street car parking for that purpose.  
The proposed separation of the residential and commercial uses of the site would be 
harmful to those interests by allowing commercial activity unrelated to the residential 
activity on site.  Moreover, the cumulative impact of this proposal together with those 
the subject of application references EPF/0071/12 and EPF/0160/12, would 
exacerbate the harm caused by this proposal.  Accordingly, the proposal is contrary 
to policy CP2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 
 

 
 
 

Page 9Page 19



Report Item No: 6 
 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0071/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Chigwell Rise 

Chigwell 
Essex 
 IG7 6AB 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey rear extension with flat roof. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission  
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534209 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 By reason of its size in relation to the existing dental surgery, the proposed 
extension would facilitate an intensification of commercial activity at the site that is at 
odds with the residential character of the locality and consequently harmful to it.  
Moreover, the cumulative impact of this proposal together with those the subject of 
application references EPF/0160/12 and EPF0161/12 would exacerbate the harm 
caused by the proposal.  Accordingly the proposal is contrary to policy CP2 of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 
 

Page 10Page 20



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0160/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 6 Chigwell Rise 

Chigwell  
Essex 
IG7 6AB 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Chigwell Village 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Part change of use on the ground floor from C3 Residential to 
D1 in order to extend the current dental surgery space. 
 

DECISION: Refuse Permission 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534626 
 
REASON FOR REFUSAL 
 

1 The proposal to increase the floor area of the dental surgery would result in an 
increase in the intensity of the use on the site. As a result the proposal would lead to 
an increase of vehicle and pedestrian movements to and from the site together with 
associated noise.  Moreover, since no additional off-street parking spaces are 
proposed or can be provided, the level of off-street parking provision for the uses on 
site would be much less than the maximum level of provision specified in the 
adopted Vehicle Parking Standards, 2009.  It is therefore very likely the proposal will 
generate a significant and uncharacteristic level of on-street parking in the locality. 
 
The proposal would therefore give the site an uncharacteristically commercial 
character that would be in sharp contrast to the established residential character of 
the locality.   As a consequence the proposal would be harmful to the character of 
the locality.  Moreover, the cumulative impact of this proposal together with those 
the subject of application references EPF/0071/12 and EPF/0161/12 would 
exacerbate the harm caused by this proposal.  Accordingly the proposal is contrary 
to policy CP2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
 

Page 11Page 21



Report Item No 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0222/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 60 Deepdene Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3PP 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Alderton 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Single storey side and front extension. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534836 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 

Page 12Page 22



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0339/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 The Broadway 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3SP 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Broadway 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from A1 Retail to A2 Financial and 
Professional Services. 
 

DECISION: Deferred 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535244 
 
This item was deferred to allow officers to reassess the proposal in the context of up to date 
information about the balance of retail and non-retail uses in the Broadway and the extent of 
vacant shops. 
 

Page 13Page 23



Report Item No: 10 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0374/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 10 Devon Close 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5LF 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Proposed hip to gable conversion, rooms in roof and rear flat 
roof dormer. 
 

DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535422 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 14Page 24



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE SOUTH 
30 May 2012 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS/ENFORCEMENT CASES 
 
 

ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/0193/12 The Last Post 
227 High Road 
Loughton 
IG10 1BB 

Grant Permission - 
(With Conditions) 
Time Limited Use 

27 

2. EPF/0323/12 Sports Pavilion  
Langston Road  
Loughton 
IG10 3TQ 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

32 

3. EPF/0339/12 
 

29 The Broadway 
Loughton 
IG10 3SP 

Grant Permission 
(with conditions) 

35 

4. EPF/0444/12 
 

84 & 86 England's Lane 
Loughton 
IG10 2QQ 

Grant Permission 
(Subject to Legal 
Agreement) 

39 

5. EPF/0464/12 
 

1 & 2 Woodbury Hollow Cottages 
(And Land to Rear) 
Woodbury Hill 
Loughton 
IG10 1JD 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

44 

6. EPF/0485/12 
 

Land to rear of 92 and 94 Roding 
Road 
Loughton 
IG10 3EF 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

49 

7. EPF/0516/12 
 

48 Stradbroke Drive  
Chigwell 
IG7 5QZ 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

58 

8. EPF/0601/12 
 

23 Princes Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
IG9 5EE 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

69 

9 EPF/0608/12 
 

181 Princes Road 
Buckhurst Hill 
IG9 5DJ 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 

74 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 25



Page 26

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0193/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: The Last Post 

227 High Road 
Loughton 
IG10 1BB 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Marys 
 

APPLICANT: J D Wetherspoon PLC  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of section of pavement to front of pub to 
provide external eating and drinking area, to be open between 
9 am and 8pm Monday to Sunday. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission - (With Conditions) Time Limited Use 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=534775 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The use hereby permitted shall cease on or before the expiry of one year from the 
date of this temporary approval. 

2 The size of the outdoor seating area hereby approved shall not exceed the 
dimensions indicated on plan number 6775/03 Rev B hereby approved, and the 
1.1m high barrier system shown on the plan shall be erected and retained at all 
times when the seating area is available for use. 
 

3 The outside seating area shall be only available for use between the hours of 9am to 
8pm, and this area shall be kept clear of all furniture, including the barrier system 
approved, between the hours of 8.30pm and 8.30am the following day. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - (pursuant to 
the ‘constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, schedule 
1,appendix A. (g)   
 
Description of Site: 
 
The Last Post is a pub and restaurant on the east side of the High Road. The depth of pavement 
outside the pub, and neighbouring shops at numbers 225 and 229, is wider than along other 
sections of the High, having a depth of 7m, although a small part of this depth is taken up by a 
ramped pedestrian access into the pub.  
 

Page 27



Description of Proposal: 
 
Change of use of part of pavement at front of the public house to provide an external seating area 
for eating and drinking, to be open between 9am and 8pm.    
 
Relevant History:  
 
None. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.           
ST4 – Road safety.   
TC3 –Town centre function. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – object – the proposed change of County Council land from 
highway pavement to use of the area for eating, drinking, and smoking was seen by members as 
undesirable, owing to its position close to a pedestrian crossing on grounds of highway safety. 
There was no evidence the applicants had or could secure a licence for the intended use. The 
proposal was also grossly detrimental to nearby residents and pedestrians, who would be 
subjected to noise and nuisance. 
 
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP– We object to a permanent grant of 
permission but would be happy for the Council to give a one year consent so it can be reviewed in 
the light of a 12 month trial, provided that 1) officers confirm that sufficient width of pavement has 
been left for pedestrians (including wheelchairs and prams and buggies), and 2) the Council adds 
a condition requiring the space used to be cleared of all furniture etc at 8pm in the evening and left 
clean. Also we consider that a permanent consent would be at variance with highway regulations 
because it would be effectively stopping up the highway and permanently handing the land to the 
pub. 
 
ESSEX CC HIGHWAYS DEPARTMENT – The Highway Authority has no objections to this 
proposal subject to it being implemented as shown on drawing no.6775/03 Rev A so as to ensure 
it is not contrary to the Highway Authority’s development management policies, adopted as County 
Council Supplementary Guidance in February 2011, and policy ST4 of the Local Plan. The County 
Council add that the retained width of footway is acceptable as it averages over 3m in width, apart 
from the pinch point with the litter bin, which is still 2.5m wide. 
 
TONY ELLIS CRIME REDUCTION OFFICER, EPPING FOREST POLICE DISTRICT POLICE, 
AND EFDC SAFER COMMUNITIES OFFICER – I attended the Last Post with your Safer 
Communities Officer, Mr. Paul Gardener. Although I appreciate you will review the application 
purely from a planning perspective, our approach was to carry out a more comprehensive crime 
and disorder survey encompassing all aspects of crime reduction, as follows. 1) After watching 
pedestrian traffic for some time we concluded that the narrowing of the pavement would not cause 
any unnecessary restrictions to the regular movement of pedestrians passing but we recommend 
that a wooden timber bin be relocated to facilitate the movement of people with pushchairs and 
prams etc. 2) We spoke to the pub manager and she agreed that the current outside CCTV 
images are poor, and also that the in house monitor cannot be viewed by staff when they are at 
work at the bar. We recommend that the current camera be replaced with a more efficient one, 
and that images are relayed to a monitor in the bar area that can be viewed by staff. 3) The pub 
manager has met the local residents’ association, who had no objections in principle to the new 
area. However concerns were raised that if seating was left out and occupied by customers late at 
night noise and nuisance could be caused. We also pointed out that insecure tables and chairs 

Page 28



could be subject of theft or used as weapons. We recommend therefore that a condition be 
imposed that all street furniture be removed at least half an hour before the pub closes so as to 
avoid people remaining in the drinking and eating area after the premises have closed. 4) The 
manager agreed to our ‘condition’ that unbreakable drinks vessels should be served to customers 
using this outside area. In conclusion our survey suggests that this proposed new drinking and 
eating area has no obvious connotations for an increase of crime and disorder in the area. 
However, as all the furniture are mobile structures, perhaps you would consider issuing a 
temporary consent to the application on the understanding that that we will review the situation 
after an agreed period to ensure that the proposed new area has not created any additional 
problems.  
  
NEIGHBOURS – 17 properties consulted, including 6 in Priory Road to the rear, and no replies 
received. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Background and revisions to the application 
 
Planning permission is required for this change of use proposal because all the pavement outside 
of this public house is part of the public highway and in the control of the County Council. This 
contrasts with some other front seating areas in the High Road where front forecourts are owned 
by the adjoining café/restaurants - and hence no change of use requiring planning permission is 
involved. At first sight these privately owned forecourts often appear to be part of the ‘public’ 
pavement, but they are normally identified by dividing lines or a different surface finish. 
 
Since being lodged this application has been amended. Following a meeting between the pub 
manager and the Loughton Residents Association Plans Group the time for this outdoor seating to 
remain has been reduced from 11pm to 8pm. This earlier closing time will reduce the potential for 
noise and nuisance to be created, and this change deals with one of the concerns raised by the 
Town Council. Secondly, the applicants are willing to accept a one year temporary planning 
consent following views made by the LRA and the Police. This will allow a review of any problems 
caused before a longer period of approval is considered. Thirdly, the applicants have reduced the 
depth of the outside area and hence a further 0.25m strip of pavement will be retained. 
 
Pedestrian and visual amenity   
 
As mentioned above both the Highway Authority and the Police consider that the remaining 
average 3m depth of pavement that will be left is satisfactory, and the reduction of the depth of the 
seating area by a further 0.25m will improve the pinch point of 2.5m pavement width where the 
waste bin is located. The proposal therefore will not unduly restrict the movement of pedestrians in 
this key shopping frontage. 
 
The application proposes to house tables and chairs within a 1.1m high barrier system which will 
contain a coloured canvass surround. These surrounds improve the appearance of these outdoor 
seating areas, and also prevent tables and chairs from being moved into the adjoining pavement 
area. More generally it is acknowledged that opinions on these outside seating areas can be 
polarised, but on balance they can provide more visual interest along a high street location, and 
can make shopping centres more attractive to visitors. 
 
Other issues and concerns of the Town Council 
 
Although not strictly a planning issue the applicants have agreed to install a new CCTV camera to 
survey this front area, together with a new monitor which will be viewed from behind the bar. This 
equipment has been ordered and it will assist in the deterrence and reduction of possible anti-
social behaviour. The Town Council are concerned that use of this outdoor area for eating and 

Page 29



drinking would compromise highway safety given the proximity of a pedestrian crossing on the 
High Road. However, there are sections of safety railing that run next to the roadside kerb, and 
this concern about a safety hazard is not shared. 
 
Conclusions 
 
The applicants are agreeable to a 12 month temporary planning permission. This would make it 
possible for revisions to be made to the proposal in 12 months time if problems are encountered. 
In the unlikely event that severe problems occur then permission could be refused in 12 months 
time. For these reasons, and those outlined above, it is recommended that a conditional and 
temporary one year permission be granted. 
 
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

34.4m

36.3m

35.1m

36.3m

35.1m

34.4m

2a

5

2

1
1

2

7

1

2 1
4

237a

2 1
6  2

1 8

239a

241

239

2 2
0

249

2 1
2

2 3
0

2 3
0

2 3
0

2 2
8

257

El

2 1

Sub Sta

4

237

2 0
2

6

2 0
4  t

o  2
1 0

2 0
0

6

1 1

1 6

6

El Sub Sta

2 3

1

C h
a p

e l  T
e r r

a c e

1

2a

2 3

1 5

2 3

1 5

B e
n n
e t t

7

1

1 1

H o
u s
e

1 5

1

Telephone

225

227

Telephone

225

237a

2 1
6  2

1 8

239a

237

2 0
2

241

239

2 1
2

2 0
4  t

o  2
1 0

209

1

3 5

Bank

Church

209

1

215
4

223

219

221

217

C e n
t r i c

 P a
r a d

e

223

219

2 3
0

2 3
0

2 2
8

5

2 3
0

257

249

2

1

2

1

2

2

Exchange
2227

B e
n n
e t t

1 1

H o
u s
e

1 5

Exchange
2

26 26

14

2 7

2 1

14

2 7

2 1

El

6

2 2
0

2 1
4

Sub Sta

Church
St Mary's

3 5

St Mary's

1 8
8  t

o  1
9 4

213

221

217

213
215

1

B a
n k

C e n
t r i c

 P a
r a d

e

1 8
2

1 7
8

1 8
0

207
207

Bank1 7
2

7

1 7
4

1 7
2

7

1 7
4

1 7
0

1  t
o  9

T o
w n

v i e
w

C h
a p

e l  T
e r r

a c e

1 1

1 6

2 1

6

1 6
2

16
8
16
8

1a

1 6
6 a

1

1 6
6

1 6
6 a

1

1 6
6

3

1 3
1 1

W or k s

7

1  t
o  9 1 8

8  t
o  1

9 4
2 0
0

B a
n kT o
w n

v i e
w

1 8
2

1 7
8

1 8
0

El Sub Sta

2 3

6

1

1

1a

16
6b

1 7
0

1 6
2

3

16
6b

5

1 1

W or k s

7

1 3

5

P R
I O

R Y
 R

O A
D

P R
I O

R Y
 R

O A
D

C L
I F

T O
N  

R O
A D

H I
G

H  
R O

A D

H I
G

H  
R O

A D

C L
I F

T O
N  

R O
A D

JACKSO N ALLEY

El Su b  St a

El Su b  St a

TCBs

GP

TCB

TCBs

TCB

JACKSO N ALLEY

GP

C U T H B E R T S  A L L E Y

C U T H B E R T S  A L L E Y

*

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/0193/12 
Site Name: The Last Post, 227 High Road 

Loughton, IG10 1BB 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 31



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0323/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Sports Pavilion  

Langston Road  
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3TQ 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Broadway 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Christopher Hunn 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of existing office to the front of the Sport 
Academy at Langston Road, for use as an Operating Centre 
for Private Hire and Hackney Carriage work.  
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535195 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal - (pursuant to 
the ‘constitution, part three: planning directorate – delegation of council function, schedule 
1,appendix A. (g)   
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application premises is an existing small office of 15 sq.m. It is located within the Sports 
Academy building which is a substantial single storey building with sections of it being two stories. 
The building has a large curtilage comprising of a variety of sports pitches, particularly football, 
and a large car park lies adjacent to the building. The building is used to manage sports and 
leisure uses on the site, and it is also used for a variety of social functions. Although the site lies 
adjoining the large Langston Road employment area, the site itself lies in the Green Belt.   
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Change of use of existing office at the front of the Sports Academy building to an operating centre 
for private hire and hackney carriage work.    
 
Relevant History:  
 
None. 

Page 32



 
Policies Applied: 
 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity.           
ST4 – Road safety.   
GB2A –Development in the Green Belt. 
GB8A – Change of use or adaption of buildings. 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL – object to this change of use since the use is an unsuitable one to 
be sited on Green Belt land contrary to policy GB2A. 
  
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION PLANS GROUP– object on same grounds as the Town 
Council above. 
 
NEIGHBOURS – one property consulted, and site notice erected, and no replies received. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
A lot of the business of the proposed car hire use will be generated by people visiting and using 
this academy, which is a busy sports and leisure complex but is not served by any bus routes. 
Given that the use will be inside the existing building the proposal does not result in any built 
development and hence there will no loss of openness in the Green Belt. In addition the use is an 
appropriate one since it provides a useful service to what is in part an open sports facility located 
in the Green Belt. For these reasons the concerns of the Town Council and LRA Plans Group are 
not shared. 
 
The proposal will provide employment for 3 people. The site has a large car park and turning area, 
and consequently the proposed use will not give rise to parking or highway safety problems along 
Langston Road. Use of this vehicle hire office late at night would not give rise to amenity issues 
since the locality is a commercial one in which there are no dwellings. 
 
Conclusions 
 
For the reasons outlined above this is a minor and acceptable change of use, and conditional 
planning permission is therefore recommended.  
  
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: David Baker 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564514 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:  contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 

Page 33



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

Pavilion

Football Centre

The Academy
Football Centre

Pavilion

The Academy

Tennis Courts

Sports Ground

Tennis Courts

Sports Ground

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/0323/12 
Site Name: Sports Pavilion, Langston Road  

Loughton, IG10 3TQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 34



Report Item No: 3 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0339/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 29 The Broadway 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3SP 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Broadway 
 

APPLICANT: Instant Cash Loans Ltd  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use from A1 Retail to A2 Financial and 
Professional Services. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (with conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535244 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation is for approval contrary to an 
objection from a local council which is material to the planning merits of the proposal (Pursuant to 
The Constitution, Part Three:  Planning Directorate – Delegation of Council function, Schedule 1, 
Appendix A.(g)) 
 
Additional Information: 
 
The application was deferred from the Area Plans Sub Committee South meeting dated 25th April 
2012 in order for Officers to reassess the proposal in the context of up to date information about 
the balance of retail and non-retail uses in the Broadway and the extent of vacant shops. 
 
A further Town Centre Survey was undertaken by Planning Services in May 2012. The latest 
figures that this survey shows is that the current balance of retail and non-retail uses within the key 
frontage (which is the only part of the town centre subject to the calculations as laid out in Local 
Plan policy TC4) are: 
 
Current retail = 84.1% 
Current non-retail = 15.9% 
 
As can be seen, the balance of retail and non-retail units has not changed from that quoted within 
the original Committee Report (reproduced in full below), as these figures do not take into account 
vacancies, as they simply relate to the lawful use class of each unit. Therefore the proposed 
change of use would still only result in an 18% non-retail frontage within the key frontage of The 

Page 35



Broadway, which is well within the 30% tolerance allowed by policy TC4. Whilst it may be 
considered that the 30% figure quoted in TC4 is too high, such issues cannot be considered in 
applications such as this but must be raised when adopting or reviewing Local Plan policies. 
 
This latest survey does however reveal a more up to date vacancy rate than the November 2011 
survey did. The latest survey shows that there are no vacant units within the key frontage, and just 
one vacant non-retail (A2) unit within the non-key frontage area (specifically No. 16 Torrington 
Drive, previously occupied by William Hill). This therefore changes the previously quoted vacancy 
figure of 13.6% to just 2.8%. Whilst this is quite a dramatic difference, vacancy rates do not form 
part of the policy requirement of TC4 and therefore this issue does not alter the compliance of the 
scheme with adopted Local Plan policies. 
 
The latest Town Centre Survey has not altered the recommendation to approve the application, as 
this proposal still complies with the relevant Local Plan policies, despite the lower vacancy rate 
within The Broadway. 
 
ORIGINAL REPORT 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the change of use from A1 Retail to A2 Financial and Professional 
Services. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site is a vacant unit located within the key frontage of The Broadway. The unit has 
a frontage width of some 7m and was last used as a Pawnbrokers. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1663/05 - Change of use from Class A1 retail to Class A2 bookmakers and external 
alterations to include new front – refused 14/11/05 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
TC1 – Town centre hierarchy 
TC3 – Town centre function 
TC4 – Non-retail frontage 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received: 
 
13 neighbours were consulted. No Site Notice was required. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – Object to the loss of an A1 premises in a key frontage locality that would be 
detrimental to the viability and vitality of the Broadway town centre. 
 
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION (Plans Group) – Object as this would reduce the vitality 
and viability of The Broadway as a shopping area and because no effort appears to have been 
made to market the unit for A1 use. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The main consideration is the impact on the vitality and viability of the town centre. Local Plan 
policy TC4 allows for non-retail units within the key frontage of town centres provided it would not 
result in: 

Page 36



 
(i) Non-retail frontage exceeding 30%; and 
(ii) More than two adjacent non-retail uses, regardless of shop frontage width. 

 
In 2005 planning permission was refused for the change of use of this unit to A2 for the following 
reason: 
 

The proposal would result in more than 20% of non-retail units in the primary 
shopping frontage of the Broadway. Loughton and would harm the vitality and 
viability of the shopping centre and would therefore by contrary to policy STC7 of 
the adopted Local Plan. 

 
Since this time the Local Plan Alterations have been adopted (TC4 has replaced STC7), which 
altered the percentage of non-retail frontage permitted from 20% to 30%. 
 
The latest Town Centre Survey undertaken by Planning Services (November 2011) shows that 
there is just 15.9% non-retail frontage within The Broadway’s Key Frontage. As such the proposed 
change of use would increase this to 18%, which is still within the acceptable tolerance as stated 
within policy TC4 (i). 
 
With regards to TC4 (ii), whilst the adjacent unit to the northeast is a nail studio (S/G) the unit 
beyond this and that adjoining the application site to the southwest are A1 retail shops. As such, 
the proposed change of use would not result in more than two adjacent non-retail units. 
 
The Loughton Residents Association (Plans Group) have objected as no evidence has been 
submitted showing that the unit has been marketed for A1 use, however the Local Plan policy 
does not require this and therefore this would not constitute a reason for refusal. 
 
Further to the above, The Broadway town centre has a higher than average vacancy rate (13.6%) 
than the national average (11.9%). Given the recent push within the National Planning Policy 
Framework for Local Planning Authorities to assist economic development and growth, the use of 
a unit within a town centre (provided it is a use suited to such areas) would be preferable and far 
more beneficial to the vitality and viability of the town centre than a vacant unit with a ‘dead 
frontage’. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed change of use complies with the requirements as set out in Local Plan policy TC4 
and as such would not be detrimental to the vitality and viability of the town centre. Furthermore, 
the use of this unit for a suitable town centre purpose would be more beneficial to the surrounding 
area than a ‘dead fronted’ vacant unit. As such, the proposed change of use complies with the 
relevant Local Plan policies and is therefore recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 

Page 37



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

3 
Application Number: EPF/0339/12 
Site Name: 29 The Broadway, Loughton, IG10 

3SP 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 38



Report Item No: 4 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0444/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 84 & 86 England's Lane 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 2QQ 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Paul Cockram 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft extension to adjoining properties. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (Subject to Legal Agreement) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535655 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The works hereby approved to 84 and 86 Englands Lane shall be carried 
simultaneously.  Should works to one house be commenced more than 14 days 
prior to works starting at the neighbouring attached house, those works shall cease 
and not recommence until works to the attached house have also been commenced.  
No work to form the dormer windows hereby approved shall be commenced until the 
ridge of both houses has been raised and roof slopes formed to the height and pitch 
shown on the approved plans. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawing numbers 1 -7 as numbered by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

 
 
Subject to the completion, within 6 months of a resolution to grant planning permission, an 
agreement under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 requiring the 
owners of 84 and 86 Englands Lane to carry out the approved works to both houses 
simultaneously. 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 

Page 39



 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises a pair of modern semi-detached houses with unusually shallow 
pitched gabled roofs situated on the north side of Englands Lane, some 30m west of its junction 
with Goldings Lane.  Land rises to the north from the road such that the pair of houses are on 
higher land and their rear gardens rise to the rear of the application site.  Land rises more gently 
from east to west. 
 
The back gardens of 2a, 2b and Hillside, Goldings Lane, all two-storey houses, back on to the 
eastern site boundary.  They are 10m in length.  The rear garden of 2 Goldings Lane extends 
along the northern site boundary.  The house at 2a aligns with the flank wall of 86 and is at slightly 
lower level.  2b is at a similar level and Hillside is at higher level. 
 
The house immediately to the west, 80 Englands Lane, is a significantly taller two-storey detached 
house that has a steeply pitched roof.  It is set back rear of the front elevations of 84 and 86 and 
continues 4m beyond their rear elevation.  Its height is emphasised by its siting on higher land. 
 
The immediate locality is characterised by two-storey houses that vary in size, design and, to a 
limited extent, in their relation to the street. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
It is proposed to reconstruct the roof of both houses at the application site, raising their ridge by 
1.3m and increasing their pitch to 33.5 degrees.  The additional height is required to facilitate loft 
conversions and both houses would have a pair of modest dormer windows in the front roof slope 
and linked box dormers in the rear facing roof slope. 
 
The owners of both houses have stated in writing that they undertake to only carry out the 
enlargement of their house simultaneously with the works to enlarge the attached house.  That 
undertaking is not in the form of a Unilateral Undertaking under S.106 of the Town and Country 
Planning Act. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
None.  An application for a loft conversion at 84 Englands Lane involving the raising of its roof by 
1m was submitted in 2011, ref EPF/1388/11, but was subsequently withdrawn. 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 
DBE10  Residential Extensions 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 8 
Site notice posted.  No, not required 
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours. 
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: “The Committee OBJECTED to this application and considered 
the proposed scheme over-large and detrimental to the streetscene.  Members expressed concern 
for the visual impact and overlooking the loft extension would cause to neighbouring properties at 
the front (as Englands Lane was very narrow) and to dwellings at the side in Goldings Road (from 

Page 40



the two rear Juliet balconies).  The proposal was deemed contrary to policies DBE9 (i) and (ii), and 
DBE10 (i) of Epping Forest District Council’s adopted Local Plan and Alterations.” 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
Design and Appearance 
 
Having regard to the variety of size and design of house type in the locality, the degree of 
separation from adjacent houses and since the resulting pitch of the enlarged roof would not be 
uncommon, the proposal to raise the height of the roof by 1.3m is acceptable in principle. 
 
At the front elevation, the proposed dormer windows would be modest (1.7m wide) and set in 
substantially from the edges of the roof.  They would be set 2m from the edge of the eaves and 1m 
from the ridge.  They would be set 0.75m from the flank elevations and there would be a distance 
of 1.2m between those at each house, although only 0.5m would separate the centre two dormers.  
Having regard to their size and spacing the proposed front dormer windows would on balance 
meet the policy test to complement the appearance of the enlarged roof and, as a whole, the 
proposal would not cause harm to the street scene. 
 
The rear elevation of the enlarged roof would be dominated by a substantial linked box dormer 
window set 0.75m from the flank elevations and the edge of the eaves.  Each dormer would have 
a large centrally positioned window enclosed by a Juliette balcony.  Although a very dominant 
feature, its scale and design would be consistent with the style of the original house.  The dormer 
would not generally be visible from the street but it would be clearly visible from the rear of 2a, 2b 
and Hillside, Goldings Road.  Since it would complement the design of this particular pair of 
houses the proposed rear dormers are acceptable in their context.  They would not necessarily be 
acceptable in the rear elevation of houses of a different design. 
 
The main risk posed by the proposal is if the development was only implemented at one of the pair 
of semi detached houses.  That would give the pair an extremely unbalanced appearance that 
would be harmful to the character and appearance of the locality.  Since the potential harm would 
be so serious it is only possible to effectively resolve this matter by requiring the owners of both 84 
and 86 Englands Lane to enter into a S106 agreement requiring the development to be carried out 
at the same time.  Given the written undertaking already given by them there should be no 
difficulty in securing that.  As an additional safeguard, it is also recommended that a planning 
condition duplicating the effect of the S106 agreement is included on any consent given, although 
that is not strictly necessary in those circumstances. 
 
Impact on living conditions 
 
Due to its size and the relationship to neighbouring properties (set out in the site description 
section of this report) the proposal would not appear overbearing or cause any loss of light.  Its 
visual impact would be acceptable. 
 
Loughton Town Council is particularly concerned about the potential for the proposal to give rise to 
excessive overlooking of neighbouring properties.  Overlooking of properties across public areas 
such as a street is not normally expected to give rise to any loss of privacy but this is one of the 
concerns raised.  The potential for such overlooking arises from the proposed front dormer 
windows.  Since they are set rear of the front elevation they are further away from properties on 
the opposite side of Englands Lane than the existing front elevation windows.  Furthermore, they 
are modest in size and a minimum distance of 21m would separate the dormers from the front 
elevation of houses opposite the site.  In the circumstances there is no potential for the front 
dormer windows to give rise to any excessive overlooking. 
 

Page 41



Notwithstanding the size of windows in the proposed rear dormers, it would not be possible to 
overlook any part of the rear elevations of 2a Goldings Road from them and any views of the rear 
of 2b would be within a highly restricted angle.  There would be somewhat less oblique views of 
Hillside from the dormer proposed at 86 Englands Lane that would primarily take in the rear 
garden area of that house.  However, the rear elevation of the house is at least 21m from the 
position of the window in the proposed dormer and most of the potentially visible part of the rear 
garden is at least 16m away and set off to the east.  Views would be somewhat more than from 
existing first floor windows in the rear elevation of that house but would be obscured by trees in the 
rear garden of Hillside.  As a consequence, the proposed rear dormers would not give rise to an 
excessive degree of overlooking. 
 
Overall, the proposal would safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring properties and while 
the matters raised by the Town Council warrant careful consideration, the above analysis of the 
proposal demonstrates no excessive harm would be caused. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposal would complement the appearance of this particular pair of houses and 
consequently would appear appropriate in the street scene.  Moreover, given the relationship with 
neighbouring properties their living conditions would not be harmed by the proposal.  In the 
circumstances the proposal complies with relevant policies listed above and it is recommended 
that planning permission be granted following the completion of an appropriate planning obligation.   
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

FW

CW

FW

CW

CFCF

FW
CW

FW
CFCF

CW

113 131 131a

129

9 6

119

2 5

El Sub Sta
2c

 to
 2

e

2

1 1
1 1 a

9 a

13a
1 3

16

9

1 5

1

14

1 0 0

127

1 5

7
9

7
3 a

5
5 a

2
10

7 a

Hillside

2b 1 a
3

8 6

1

8 4

105

2a8 0

9793

3 5

L o
n g

f i e
l d  

C o
t t a

g e
s

75

5 7

4 5

85

6 6

77

7 6

6 2

69

5 0

5

61
67

1

11

R e
e  L

a n
e  C

o t t
a g

e s

7

59

1830

57

42

4 7
37 27

2

14

1

9 6

1 0 0

131 131a

129127

1 5

9
7

2

5
5 a

10

7
7 a

El Sub Sta

3 5

10597
113

119

2 5

9 a
1 1

1 1 a

13a
1 3

16

9

1 5

1

2b 1 a
3 a

3

Hillside

8 68 4

2a

5 759

4 5

93
85

6 6

77

75

7 6
8 0

30 18

4 7
37 27

5 0

5

61
67

6 2

69

L o
n g

f i e
l d  

C o
t t a

g e
s

11

R e
e  L

a n
e  C

o t t
a g

e s1

7

57

42

H I L
L C

R O
F T

H I L
L C

R O
F T

C O LE S  G R E E N

G O L D I N G S  R O A D

C O LE S  G R E E N

G O L D I N G S  R O A D

LBLB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

4 
Application Number: EPF/0444/12 
Site Name: 84 & 86 England's Lane, Loughton 

IG10 2QQ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 43



Report Item No: 5 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0464/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 1 & 2 Woodbury Hollow Cottages (And Land to Rear) 

Woodbury Hill 
Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 1JD 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton St Johns 
 

APPLICANT: Mr James Holloway 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Change of use of part of land within the site for use as 
residential garden and retention of shed and greenhouse. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535745 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other Order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that Order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Class E of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be undertaken within the curtilage 
of 1 & 2 Woodbury Hollow Cottages without the prior written permission of the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

2 Land within the application site west of the land shown hatched on drawing 1139 2 
Rev. a shall not be used for residential purposes and shall not be included within the 
curtilage of 1 & 2 Woodbury Hollow Cottages.  Notwithstanding the provisions of the 
Town and Country Planning General Permitted Development Order 1995 as 
amended (or any other Order revoking, further amending or re-enacting that Order) 
no fence, wall or other means of enclosure generally permitted by virtue of Class A 
of Part 2 of Schedule 2 to the Order shall be erected on the land, other than on its 
northern, western and southern boundaries with neighbouring land, without the prior 
written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Site: 
 
Extended Grade II listed detached house, originally a pair of semi-detached houses,  within the 
York Hill Conservation Area and the Green Belt.  The site is on land below the level of Woodbury 
Hill accessed via a single track access road.  Land falls away west of the house (the rear) and 
rises steeply east of its front elevation to a garage in the western corner of the front garden.  There 

Page 44



is no usable rear garden and the curtilage of the house is set an average of 4m beyond the rear 
elevation of the house. 
 
Rear of the house is an open grassed field that continues to Epping Forest, some 90m beyond the 
curtilage.  Trees mark the southern boundary of the field, while its northern boundary is open, 
enclosed by a low field fence.  Beyond the northern boundary is the garden of Woodbury House, 
which includes a tennis court.  Beyond the southern boundary is an open field rear of the back 
garden of Woodbury Hollow. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This proposal comprises 3 elements: 
 
1. The extension of the western limit to the curtilage of Woodbury Hollow Cottages an 

average of 19m into the field west of the house.  The limit of the new curtilage would be 3m 
beyond the western flank of a greenhouse erected on the land. 

 
2. Retention of the greenhouse erected on the land proposed to be included in the curtilage of 

Woodbury Hollow Cottages.  The building is a predominantly glazed structure that is of 
timber construction and is approximately 3m high at the ridge.  It is set on the southern site 
boundary adjacent to well established trees, has a width of 4.2m and a maximum depth of 
3.5m. 

 
3. Retention of a timber shed that is situated within the present curtilage of Woodbury Hollow 

Cottages, some 7m north of the northern flank of the house abutting the site boundary with 
Woodbury House.  The building is of timber construction with a plain tiled gabled roof.  Its 
ridge height is 4.15m, its width 5.2m and depth is a maximum of 4.7m.  Its northern and 
western flanks are enclosed by a substantial laurel hedge. 

 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1097/86  Two storey side and single storey rear extensions. Approved 
EPF/0102/07 Alterations to fenestration in previously approved (EPF/1097/86) two storey 

side extension and erection of detached garage. Approved 
EPF/2414/11 Detached summer house and detached greenhouse.  Refused for the 

following reason: 
“The greenhouse is sited on land which falls outside of the residential 
boundary of Woodbury Hollow Cottages.  Accordingly it is not appropriate to 
consider the retention of the domestic outbuilding separately to an 
application for the change of use of the land.  No such application has been 
received and this application is not made in respect of any material change 
of use of land.” 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
GB2A  Development in the Green Belt 
GB4  Extensions of Residential Curtilages 
GB7A  Conspicuous Development 
HC6  Character Appearance and Setting of Conservation Areas 
HC7  Development Within Conservation Areas 
HC12  Development Affecting the Setting of Listed Buildings 
DBE1  Design of New Buildings 
DBE4  Design in the Green Belt 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 

Page 45



LL10  Adequacy of Provision for Landscape Retention 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 2 
Site notice posted. Yes 
Responses received:  No response received from neighbours. 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL: Objection raised to the principle of the change of use of 

Green Belt land that is within a conservation area. 
CONSERVATORS OF EPPING FOREST: No response received 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
A previous application to retain the greenhouse was refused solely on the basis the application did 
not include any proposal to use land within which it is sited as residential curtilage.  This 
application overcomes that defect and it is now possible to consider the proposal as a whole. 
 
The principle of enlarging the curtilage of dwellinghouse in the Green Belt is acceptable in policy 
terms subject to compliance with the requirements of Local Plan and Alterations Policy GB4.  In 
this case the proposed additional area of curtilage, which would be used as garden for the house, 
would be in proportion to the size of house it would serve and well related to it.  It would also be 
well related to the curtilage of neighbouring houses, which bound the entire northern boundary and 
most of the southern boundary of the proposed additional curtilage.  Subject to the imposition of 
planning conditions removing permitted development rights for the erection of out-buildings on the 
land and prohibiting the use of other land at Woodbury Hollow Cottages in the ownership of the 
applicant from being used as part of the curtilage of the house, the proposal would not have an 
adverse impact on the open character of the landscape.  The proposal to enlarge the curtilage 
therefore complies with the requirements of policy GB4 and amounts to appropriate development 
in the Green Belt. 
 
Due to their sensitive design and siting the retention of the conservatory and shed buildings would 
not be harmful to the open character of the landscape.  Indeed, the shed is well screened from 
views outside the present curtilage of Woodbury Hollow Cottages.  In the circumstances and since 
they are of a scale that is reasonably related to the main house as ancillary domestic buildings, 
they are also appropriate development in the Green Belt. 
 
The Council’s Conservation Officer was consulted in respect of the design of the buildings to be 
retained and their impact on the York Hill Conservation Area and the setting of Woodbury Hollow 
Cottages as a listed building.  The Officer finds the buildings are sensitively designed and 
consequently is content with their impact on the character and appearance of the Conservation 
Area and on the setting of the listed building. 
 
The development causes no harm to the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of neighbouring 
properties and causes no harm to adjacent trees. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
Based on the above assessment of the merits of the proposal it is recommended that planning 
permission be granted. 
 
 

Page 46



Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 47



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

80.5m80.5m

15 15

House
Woodbury

Mulberry

House
Woodbury

Mulberry

High

Woodberrie

Holly
High

Woodberrie

Holly

Woodberrie Knoll

2
1

Woodberrie Knoll

2
1

Woodbury
Hollow

Woodbury Hollow

Hollow

Woodbury Hollow Cottages or 2

Woodbury

W
O O

D B
U R

Y  
H I

L L

KI NG'S  HI L L

W
O O

D B
U R

Y  
H I

L L

KI NG'S  HI L L

L o
u g

h t o
n  B

r o o
k

L o
u g

h t o
n  B

r o o
k

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

5 
Application Number: EPF/0464/12 
Site Name: 1 & 2 Woodbury Hollow Cottages (And Land to 

Rear), Woodbury Hill, Loughton, IG10 1JD 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 
 

Page 48



Report Item No: 6 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0485/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Land to rear of 92 and 94 Roding Road 

Loughton 
Essex 
IG10 3EF 
 

PARISH: Loughton 
 

WARD: Loughton Roding 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Narinder Sahota  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of two bedroom one and a half storey detached 
dwelling with one off street car parking space. (Revised 
Application) 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535794 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no extensions or outbuildings generally 
permitted by virtue of Schedule 2, Part 1, Classes A. B and E shall be undertaken 
without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 

Page 49



establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

5 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
openings in the north-eastern and north-western elevations (at ground and first floor) 
shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 
metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

6 Prior to occupation of the development a 1.5 metre x 1.5 metre pedestrian visibility 
splay, as measured from and along the highway boundary, shall be provided on both 
sides of the vehicular access. Such visibility splays shall be retained free of any 
obstruction in perpetuity. These visibility splays must not form part of the vehicular 
surface of the access.  
 

7 Prior to commencement of the development details of surface water drainage shall 
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
approved scheme shall include a method to prevent the discharge of surface water 
from the development onto the highway and shall be carried out in its entirety prior 
to the access becoming operational and shall be retained at all times.  
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee as it is for a form of development that can not be 
approved at Officer level if there are more than two expressions of objection to the proposal. 
(Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A(f) of the Council’s Delegated functions) and since the 
recommendation differs from the views of the local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A 
(g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application site comprises the rearmost part of the gardens of 92, 94 and 94A Roding Road.  
To the north of the site is a private road providing access to the rear gardens (with garages) of 
properties in Roding Road and Stonards Hill and the allotments at the rear.  The site is relatively 
level with only one small tree on the eastern boundary with the side access road. The street scene 
is made up of semi-detached and terraced dwellings. Some properties facing onto Roding Road 
(including the ground floor of 92 and 94 Roding Road) are in commercial use.  
 
At the time of the Officer’s site visit there was no available on street parking.   
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission for the erection of a one and a half storey dwelling with 
a footprint of approximately 8.4 x 8.5 metres.  The dwelling would have an eaves height of 
approximately 3.9 metres and a maximum height of 6.5 metres.  The dwelling would have single 
storey lean-to additions to the front (facing Stonards Hill) and side (facing towards 92/94 Roding 
Road).  At first floor level the dwelling would have a dormer to the front elevation and a rooflight to 
the rear.  The dwelling would have a single car parking space to the front and an area of private 
amenity space (approximately 80m²) to the front/side, surrounded by a 1.8 metre high close 
boarded timber fence.   
 

Page 50



The proposal is for a dwelling which would not appear materially different to that which was 
proposed through application reference EPF/1788/10, previously refused planning permission by 
this committee in October 2010.  No appeal was submitted against that refusal of planning 
permission, and the period during which an appeal may have been lodged has expired. 
 
The only alterations to the proposal relate to minor changes to fenestration, including the 
replacement of the previously flush window to bedroom 1 with a bow window with a small pitched 
roof above; the replacement of a kitchen window in the Stonards Hill elevation with a door and an 
alteration to the style of the glazing within the proposed dormer window facing Stonards Hill and a 
slight increase in its width from 1.5m to 1.6m).     
 
Relevant History: 
 
� Grant permission 1990 – Two storey side and single storey rear extensions and replacement 

detached garage. 
 
� Grant permission 2003 – Change of use from retail shop/residential to 2 no. self contained two-

bedroom flats with single storey side extension to accommodate new retail unit and store. 
 
� Grant permission 2004 – Two storey side extension incorporating the creation of an A2 unit 

and first floor accommodation. 
 
� EPF/0409/08.  Erection of new house to rear gardens.  Refused 23/05/08.  Dismissed at 

appeal.   
 
� EPF/1630/09.  Detached chalet bungalow.  Refused 26/11/09 for the following reason: 
 

The proposed dwelling by virtue of its design (in particular the height, bulk and pitch of its roof 
and the proposed number of dormer windows) would fail to complement the street scene and 
as a result the dwelling would be an incongruous addition which would be detrimental to the 
character and appearance of the surrounding area, contrary to policies CP2(iv) and DBE1(i) of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.   

 
� EPF/1788/10.  Erection of two bedroom one and a half storey detached dwelling with one off 

street car parking space (Revised application).  Refused for the following reasons: 
 

The proposed house, by reason of its unsympathetic design and constrained siting in the rear 
gardens of modest dwellings would appear in sharp contrast to its surroundings. As a 
consequence it would appear as an inappropriate form of development that would detract from 
the character and appearance of the locality. The proposal is therefore contrary to national 
planning policy set out in PPS3: Housing and to policies CP2, CP3 and DBE1 of the adopted 
Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
CP3 – Sustainable new development 
DBE1 – Design of New Buildings 
DBE2/9 - Impact of New Development 
DBE6 - Parking for new residential developments 
DBE8 – Private Amenity Space 
LL10 – Retention of Site Landscaping 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 – Vehicle Parking 
 

Page 51



Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this planning application has been sent to 24 neighbouring properties and to 
Loughton Town Council.   
 
LOUGHTON TOWN COUNCIL:  Objection.  The Committee objected to this application and noted 
that recent government guidance on PPS3 on the issue of back garden development, also known 
as ‘garden grabbing’ had been strengthened.  Members therefore reiterated comments previously 
made on EPF/1788/10, EPF/1630/09 and EPF/0409/08, which were: 
  
The Committee objected to this application which was contrary to policies DBE6(ii) & DBE8(iii) of 
EFDC’s Local Plan as the proposals might cause parking problems on an already overcrowded 
street and the amenity space was considered insufficient for a family house.  Moreover, concern 
was expressed that the proposal introduced an unsympathetic change at this locality by its siting in 
the rear garden, which was out of character with properties in the immediate vicinity and set a 
precedent.  Therefore, the Committee considered the development would harm the character and 
appearance of the area, by virtue of its size, siting and poor relationship with other neighbouring 
properties, contrary to policies DBE(i)&(ii) and DBE2, in addition to the above mentioned policies 
of EFDC’s Local Plan.  Furthermore, the Committee considered this latest application contrary to 
Government recommendations given on Planning Policy Statement PPS3 on the issue of back 
garden development also known as ‘garden grabbing’.  The Committee drew the District Council 
Planning Officer’s attention to the inaccurate plans submitted that omitted reference to a rear 
extension at no. 92 Roding Road (EPF/1308/10) by the same applicant, for which planning 
permission had recently been granted.  The Committee was extremely concerned that the 
proposal would narrow the access road off Stonards Hill causing grave difficulties to larger 
vehicles as well as making it more hazardous for the Roding Road houses and allotment holders it 
served.  The Committee also believed this could lead to a possible infringement of an easement.  
The Committee was most concerned by the proposed loss of an elder tree at the entrance to the 
access road, which it considered was a valuable component of the street scene.  Members drew 
the District Council Arboricultural Officer’s attention to its possible removal and sought clarification 
on whether this tree could be considered for a TPO.   
 
LOUGHTON RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION (Plans Group):  Objection.  This proposed property is a 
very sizeable property in what is the Applicant’s garden.  It is neither a full two storey house similar 
to the houses which are found on Stonards Hill onto which this property faces, nor a single storey 
outbuilding/shed that some residents have in their rear gardens.  We consider that: 

� The design is out of character with all of the surrounding houses and is too bulky and 
overbearing to be built in a small garden plot.   

� The proposal would substantially compromise the street scene of Stonards Hill. 
� The amenity space for the new house is too small.   
� The new Government has strengthened the presumption against garden developments, 

which this appears to be.   
 
The current application is almost exactly the same as the previous application for this site, which 
was rejected by the Council on the following grounds.   
 
Letters of objection have been received from the following neighbouring properties: 68, 74, 76, 78, 
80 86, 88, 90, 98, 100 Roding Road, 2, 3, 4, 8, 9 Stonards Hill and 64 The Crescent.  The grounds 
for objection are summarised below.   
 
Design – Not appropriate to the area.  Building out of keeping with other houses in the immediate 
area.  No other properties with a similar appearance or dimensions.   Property would be too large 
for the site and would look overbearing on a small garden plot.  Plots have already been 
overdeveloped and the plot is too small for yet more development.   
 

Page 52



Drainage – have been flooding problems over last 30-40 years.  This has worsened due to people 
paving and concreting their gardens.  This should be an important consideration for the Council.  
There is no mention of the drainage channels at the entrance of the access road.  Believe that 
there is an interceptor gully on the left hand side of the entrance, but EFDC do not have plans 
available to show this.  3 manholes situated in the access road close to 2 Stonards Hill.  The 
access road is 6-8 inches lower than 94 Roding Road, therefore surface water would flood the 
access road.  Repairs to the road were necessary in 2003 due to subsidence caused mainly by 
large amounts of water eroding the surface of the road.   
 
Parking/Access – the parking entrance will remove existing parking facilities for local residents 
which are already in great demand.  Parking is especially difficult during the day.  Access to the 
alley will be restricted, including access by the emergency service.  The access is often congested 
as it supports local residents as well as people who own the allotments in Stonards Hill.   
 
Neighbouring amenity – insufficient amenity space retained for the properties in whose garden the 
proposed property would be built.  The construction of the dwelling would be very disruptive to 
local residents and pedestrians – in particular the parking of large construction vehicles.  Noise, 
cooking smells and perceived overlooking will affect 88, 90 Roding Road.  Reduced light, visual 
impact and overlooking on 2 Stonards Hill (particularly between circular side window and kitchen 
of 2 Stonards Hill).  Loss of privacy for adjacent properties.  Concerns of overlooking have resulted 
in loss of a sale of neighbouring property.   
 
Trees – removal of Elder tree.  Existing trees have been cut down in the two gardens, which has 
already spoilt the look and environment of the neighbourhood.  I suspect this is in preparation for 
the application. 
 
Precedent – this application could set a precedent for other residents to make similar applications.   
 
Garden Grabbing – No new houses are to be built on gardens.   
 
Boundary – the fence line has been revised to include the land on which the elderberry tree stood.  
This reduces the width of the service road, which even now has problems with large vehicles.  
Evidence to justify extending the boundary into the service road should be produced.   
 
Footpaths will be affected.   
 
Reduction to property values. 
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues to be considered are the acceptability of the principle of the residential 
development; the impacts of the proposed development on the amenities of the occupiers of 
neighbouring dwellings and on the character and appearance of the area and the levels of amenity 
for the future occupiers of the proposed dwelling.  Consideration will also be had to parking and 
highways and trees and landscape matters.   
 
Since the proposal was considered previously, there has been a change to national planning 
policies which relate to residential developments – although this does not alter the case officer’s 
assessment that the development is acceptable, in principle.   
 
The changes proposed to the dwelling since the previously refused application are considered by 
the case officer to be very minor.  Generally, the changes to the fenestration at ground floor level 
are considered to enhance the appearance of the dwelling, whilst the alterations to the dormer 
would slightly increase the prominence of this feature – although not to an extent that it is 
considered that it would appear harmful within the street scene.  On the basis that the changes 

Page 53



proposed are so minor, the Officer’s recommendation remains as per the previous application.  
The Officer’s conclusions on the material considerations are repeated below.   
 
Principle of Residential Development 
 
The site, as forming part of a private residential garden, is not considered to be previously 
developed land, as defined within the National Planning Policy Framework.   
 
However, the site is in a sustainable location, within walking distance of Loughton London 
Underground Station and is additionally served by a bus route, in accordance with policy CP3.  
The proposed dwelling would front onto a road and would be sited on a building line comparable 
with that of 2 Stonards Hill.  Subject to it being of a suitable design and having regard to the advice 
above, it is not considered that it would be harmful to the character of surrounding development.   
 
Impact on neighbouring dwellings 
 
The proposed dwelling would be located approximately 2.5 metres from the side boundary of 90 
Roding Road.  The rear roofslope would contain a rooflight.  As this rooflight would serve a 
bathroom, it is reasonable that this may be required to be obscure glazed and fixed shut by the 
use of a planning condition.     
 
Due to the location of the dwelling alongside the flank of 2 Stonards Hill, there would not be a 
material loss of amenity.  The glass blocks (which would provide light to the hall and landing) and 
the circular windows providing light to the downstairs bathroom may also be required to be 
obscure glazed. Indeed it is anticipated that the applicants would desire the privacy afforded by the 
use of obscure glazing to these rooms.   
 
Rear gardens of an acceptable size would be retained for 92 and 94 Roding Road, albeit they 
would be considerably smaller than the gardens of surrounding properties.   
 
Due to the constraints of the site and the resultant potential for even minor additions to the 
dwelling to impact on the amenities enjoyed by the occupiers of neighbouring properties 
(particularly additions at first floor level) it is recommended that a planning condition be imposed to 
remove permitted development rights for future additions.   
 
Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area 
 
Planning application reference EPF/0409/08 was refused by the Council on the basis that it would 
be harmful to the street scene.  That planning application sought consent for a chalet bungalow, as 
it was concluded by the Inspector dealing with the appeal against the refusal of an earlier planning 
application that the combination of rising levels and the massing and full two storey scale of that 
proposed house would result in a large and dominant development.  Accordingly, it appears that 
the Inspector felt that there was scope for an additional dwelling on the site, albeit not a full two 
storey dwelling.   
 
The dwelling proposed is one and a half storeys in height and it is considered that it sits more 
comfortably within the street scene than the previously proposed two storey dwelling and 
bungalow.  The design of the dwelling does not replicate anything else within the street and is 
somewhat quirky, particularly with regard to the use of fenestration.  This application is 
accompanied by a relatively lengthy Design and Access Statement, in which the architect 
discusses the design principles behind the proposal.  The architect advises that ‘the building will 
have a simple street elevation echoing the bay fronted style of neighbouring properties.  The 
property will have an individual character of its own being created from the concept of a simple 
white rendered box. The new house will be much lower than its neighbours in line with mews 
houses that are always subservient to their host buildings.  The architectural references are that of 

Page 54



a mews house.  To achieve this, the height is only 1 ½ storeys high.  The attic bedroom is 
contained within the roof slopes.  The architectural style is a faint echo of the art deco style of the 
1930’s.  Loughton contains many houses of this period’.  In the Planning Officer’s opinion, this 
proposal achieves a suitable balance by presenting a dwelling that would complement existing 
dwellings within the street scene whilst respecting the need for a building that is of reduced scale 
and mass.   
 
Amenity for Future Occupiers 
There would be an adequate level of amenity for future occupiers within the dwelling.  The 
proposed area of amenity space would be small, (the main area being approximately 4.5 metres 
deep and 13 metres wide) but satisfactory for a small 2 bed dwelling.   
 
The level of amenity space is such that it is considered necessary to remove permitted 
development rights for extensions to the dwelling or for the creation of outbuildings within the 
garden, so that the adequacy of the amenity space to be retained may be considered through the 
determination of a planning application.   
 
Boundary  
Neighbours have raised issues regarding the site boundary adjacent to the access road.  The 
applicants have confirmed that they are the sole owners of the application site and that the 
development will not encroach onto the access road.  The trunk of the existing Elder tree stands 
mainly behind the existing brick pier to the rear garden of 92/94 Roding Road.  Accordingly it 
appears to stand predominantly within the existing physical demarcation of the boundary.  The 
boundary fence runs along the inside of the brick pier, which is approximately 40cm wide.   
 
Parking and Access  
The proposed dwelling would have one off-street parking space, which is considered acceptable 
for a two bed dwelling in this location, close to local shops and public transport links.  The parking 
space is smaller than the current parking standards require.  However, there is sufficient space to 
accommodate a parking space of the correct size and accordingly this may be required by 
planning condition.  The Development Management Officer at Essex County Council is happy with 
the proposed access, subject to the imposition of planning conditions. 
 
Much concern has been raised by local residents regarding the impact of the development on the 
access road located to the side of the site.  The access road is of varying width along its length 
and generally has the form of two hard surfaced tracks with greenery between and to each side.  
There are many garages along the access road, some of which sit directly on the side and others 
which have small hardsurfaced aprons to the fronts.  At the point at which the access road meets 
the pavement its width (measured between the brick piers of 94 Roding Road and 2 Stonards Hill) 
is 3.4 metres.  Its usable width (between the greenery on either side) measures 2.4 metres.  This 
width is reduced to 2.15 metres at a distance of 3 metres back from the pavement.  A narrow part 
of the access road abutting the proposed bungalow south east of an adjacent garage would be 
included in the application site.  The garage is separated from the fence alongside 2 Stonards Hill 
by a distance of 4.64 metres.  The land at the access road within the application site is clearly 
visible as being distinct from the remainder of the access road.  It is separated by greenery and is 
hardsurfaced in a different finish.  The enclosure of this area of land will not reduce the width of the 
access road to an extent that would prevent its use, although it will remove an area which at 
present may be used to allow vehicles to pass.  Notwithstanding this, the development proposed 
on this land is only the erection of a one metre high fence.  As such an operation may normally be 
undertaken without the need for planning permission, it is not considered that this would justify the 
refusal of planning permission.   
 
Trees and Landscape 
Site landscaping may be secured by planning condition, if approval is given.  This may also secure 
the replacement planting of an Elder tree, as shown on the submitted plan.    The existing elder 

Page 55



tree would be lost as a result of the development.  It has undergone extensive works to reduce its 
crown and as a result its loss would not be detrimental to the street scene.  It would not, therefore, 
be worthy of protection by a Tree Preservation Order (TPO).  
 
Flood Risk  
The Council’s Land Drainage section has advised that the site does not lie within a flood zone.  
The development would cause only a negligible increase in surface water runoff.  However, as the 
applicant is proposing to dispose of surface water by soak away/main sewer, they request a 
planning condition requiring the Council’s approval of surface water drainage details.   .     
 
Conclusion  
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that recent changes in Government guidance do not 
alter the principle of a residential development of this site, which has been identified previously by 
the Planning Inspector.  It is considered that the design concerns identified in respect of previous 
proposals on this site have been addressed by the current proposal, which would make a positive 
contribution to the street scene.  It is understood that local residents have considerable concerns 
regarding the proposed development, in particular with regard to on-street parking and the use of 
the access road, but also with matters including the design of the building, the loss of the elder 
tree, flood risk and impacts of neighbouring amenity.  However, subject to the use of the planning 
conditions discussed throughout this report it is not, on balance, considered that these concerns 
would justify the withholding of planning permission.  Matters relating to the boundary dispute and 
possible reductions in property value are not afforded sufficient weight as to justify the refusal of 
the planning application.  Accordingly, it is recommended that planning permission be granted.   
 
 
 
 
 
 

Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number (01992) 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

22.6m

23.5m

22.6m

23.5m

11

2

El
Sub Sta

2

El
4

Sub Sta

1
P a r

a d eO a k
w o o

d

21 21

2 4

7 6

1 6

2 4

7 6

1 6

11

8

28 6

11

8

28 6

58

7 0

58

7 0

C e n
t r a l

C e n
t r a l

4

1
P a r

a d eO a k
w o o

d

120
120

10
5

11
9

11
1

11
9

11
1

10
5

94

9 6

1

1 0 8

94a

94

9 6

1

1 0 8

94a

St Michael'sSt Michael's

St Michael and All

House

Angels Church
St Michael and All

House

Angels Church

32
3132
31

2 2
2 1

2 8
2 7

2 2
2 1

2 8
2 7

S T O N A R D S  H I L L

S T O N A R D S  H I L L

L o u g h t o n  B r o o k

L o u g h t o n  B r o o k

LB
TCBsTCBs

LB

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

6 
Application Number: EPF/0485/12 
Site Name: Land to rear of 92 and 94 Roding Road 

Loughton, IG10 3EF 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 57



Report Item No: 7 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0516/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 48 Stradbroke Drive  

Chigwell 
Essex 
IG7 5QZ 
 

PARISH: Chigwell 
 

WARD: Grange Hill 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Allirajah Subaskaran 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Erection of replacement dwelling. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=535871 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 The development hereby permitted will be completed strictly in accordance with the 
approved drawings nos: 3/5878: 1 rev. E; 2 rev. E; 3 rev. E; 4 rev. E; 5 rev. B; 6 rev. 
B; and 7 rev. C. 
 

4 Prior to first occupation of the development hereby approved, the proposed window 
opening(s) within the side elevations of the building at first and second floor level 
shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 
metres above the floor of the room in which the window is installed and shall be 
permanently retained in that condition. 
 

5 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no extensions generally permitted by virtue of 
Schedule 2 Part 1, Classes A and B shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

6 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 

Page 58



Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

7 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

8 All material excavated from the below ground works hereby approved shall be 
removed from the site unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning 
Authority. 
 

9 The proposed use of this site has been identified as being particularly vulnerable if 
land contamination is present, despite no specific former potentially contaminating 
uses having been identified for this site.   
 
Should any discoloured or odorous soils be encountered during development works 
or should any hazardous materials or significant quantities of non-soil forming 
materials be found, then all development works should be stopped, the Local 
Planning Authority contacted and a scheme to investigate the risks and / or the 
adoption of any required remedial measures be submitted to, agreed and approved 
in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the recommencement of 
development works. 
 
Following the completion of development works and prior to the first occupation of 
the site, sufficient information must be submitted to demonstrate that any required 
remedial measures were satisfactorily implemented or confirmation provided that no 
unexpected contamination was encountered. 
 

10 An assessment of flood risk, focussing on surface water drainage, shall be 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to commencement 
of the development. The assessment shall demonstrate compliance with the 
principles of Sustainable Drainage Systems (SuDS). The development shall be 
carried out and maintained in accordance with the approved details. 
 

11 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations, including vehicle 
movement on site which are audible at the boundary of noise sensitive premises, 
shall only take place between the hours of 07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 
08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no time during Sundays and Public/Bank 
Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

Page 59



12 No development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a 
Construction Method Statement has been submitted to, and approved in writing by, 
the Local Planning Authority. The approved Statement shall be adhered to 
throughout the construction period. The Statement shall provide for: 
 
1. The parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors 
2. Loading and unloading of plant and materials 
3. Storage of plant and materials used in constructing the development 
4. The erection and maintenance of security hoarding including decorative displays 
and facilities for public viewing, where appropriate 
5. Measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during construction, including 
wheel washing 
6. A scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and 
construction works. 
 

13 No development shall take place until details of levels have been submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority showing cross-sections and elevations of 
the levels of the site prior to development and the proposed levels of all ground floor 
slabs of buildings, roadways and accessways and landscaped areas. The 
development shall be carried out in accordance with those approved details. 
 

14 No unbound material shall be used in the surface finish of the driveway within 6 
metres of the highway boundary of the site. 
 

15 Prior to commencement of the development details shall be approved in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority showing the means to prevent the discharge of surface 
water from the development onto the highway.  The approved scheme shall be 
carried out in its entirety before the access is first used and shall be retained at all 
times. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee as it is for a form of development that can not be 
approved at Officer level if there are more than two expressions of objection to the proposal 
(Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A(f) of the Council’s Delegated functions) and since the 
recommendation differs from the views of the local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A 
(g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Site:  
   
The application site comprises a large detached two storey property located in a fairly uniform 
building line on the northern side of Stradbroke Drive. The road is comprised predominantly of 
large detached two storey units. However, there are differences evident between plot and dwelling 
size between each property. The site is currently occupied by a neo-Georgian mansion, whilst the 
road has a variety of property styles. The site is subject to a ‘blanket Tree Preservation Order’, 
with many protected trees. 
Description of Proposal:  
 
This application seeks planning permission for a replacement dwelling.  The proposed dwelling 
would have accommodation across four levels (including basement and roof space) including a 
prayer room within the upper floor (roof space); 9 bedroom suites (including en suite 
bathrooms/dressing areas) across the upper two floors; a kitchen, dining room, two lounges, a 
study, a music room, a swimming pool and staff accommodation on the ground floor; and a 
cinema, gym, entertainment lounge and services within the basement floor.   

Page 60



 
The proposed dwelling would have garaging for six vehicles with scope for additional parking to 
the front of the dwelling.  The garage would be served by a lift access and turn table.  The existing 
‘in/out’ accesses would be retained.   
 
The proposed dwelling would generally follow the footprint of the existing two storey dwelling on 
the site, although it would have a more rectangular plan, which would infill parts of the existing ‘H’ 
shaped footprint.   
 
Relevant History: 
 
There is a lengthy planning history on this site. The most recent and relevant applications are: 
 
EPF/0968/05.  Outline application for demolition of existing dwelling and erection of three 
detached dwellings.  Refused 17/10/05, subsequently allowed on appeal.  The planning 
permission was not taken up and has now lapsed. 
 
EPF/2354/07.  Demolition of existing house and erection of detached house with basement and 
rooms in roof space.  Refused 22/02/08. 
 
The above was refused planning permission for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed dwelling, by virtue of its size and bulk, would be out of keeping and visually 
detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene, contrary to policy DBE1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
2. The proposed dwelling, by virtue of the number of windows and the balcony in the front 

elevation, would result in a material loss of amenity to neighbouring properties opposite the 
site, contrary to policy DBE2 of the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations.   

 
EPF/1159/08. Demolition of existing house and erection of detached house with basement and 
rooms in roof space.  Refused 25/07/08. 
 
The above was refused planning permission for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed dwelling, by virtue of its size and bulk, would be out of keeping and visually 
detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene, contrary to policy DBE1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
EPF/0034/09.  Demolition of existing dwelling and the construction of a replacement house. 
(Revised application).  Refused 04/03/09.  For the following reason: 
 
1. The proposed dwelling, by virtue of its size and bulk would be out of keeping and visually 

detrimental to the character and appearance of the street scene, contrary to policy DBE1 of 
the Adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
An appeal against the above refusal of planning permission was subsequently dismissed.   
 
EPF/1640/09.  Demolition of existing house and construction of replacement. (Revised 
application).  Refused 16/11/09 for the following reason: 
 

1. The design of the proposed dwelling, in particular the roof form and the third floor dormer 
window, would result in the building having a bulky appearance which would be an overly 
prominent, overbearing addition within the street scene which would be harmful to the 

Page 61



spacious character of the locality, contrary to policies CP2 (iv) and DBE1 (i) (ii) of the 
adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
EPF/1937/10.  Erection of replacement dwelling. (Revised application). Refused 11/11/2010 for 
the following reason: 
 
1. By reason of its unsympathetic design, particularly in terms of its bulk, relationship to 

neighbouring properties and the inclusion of a two-storey portico to the front elevation, the 
proposed house would fail to respect its setting and consequently would be harmful to the 
character and appearance of the locality.  The proposed house is therefore contrary to 
policies CP2 (iv), CP3 (v), CP7 and DBE1 of the adopted Local Plan and Alterations. 

 
Policies Applied: 
 
Adopted Local Plan and Alterations 
 
CP2 – Protecting the Quality of the Rural and Built Environment  
DBE1 - Design of New Buildings 
DBE2/9 - Impact of New Development 
DBE6 - Residential Car Parking 
DBE8 - Private Amenity Space 
LL10 - Retention of Site Landscaping 
ST4 – Road Safety 
ST6 - Vehicle Parking 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
Notification of this application was sent to Chigwell Parish Council and to 18 neighbouring 
residents.   The following representations have been received: 
 
CHIGWELL PARISH COUNCIL:  Objection.  The Council objects to this application as it is 
deemed to be out of keeping with the street scene due to the significant increase in bulk and will 
adversely affect the amenities of local residences.   
 
PETITION (79 signatures):  Objection.  The scale and intensity of the development would harm the 
character of the locality.  By reason of its bulk and massing the dwelling would appear 
disproportionately large within the street scene.  Concerned regarding the proposed major 
underground excavation – potential for subsidence and surface water problems.  Residents could 
consider the Council liable for effects, should the Council grant permission for such a basement 
level.  No provision has been made for increases in parking.  The scale of this development would 
inevitably generate increased traffic with resulting congestion.  The protection of listed trees would 
be almost impossible – further the transport of workers would cause serious congestion for several 
years.  Other properties in Chigwell, such as Bretts, Marching’s Farm could easily accommodate 
such a development.  Residents could consider the Council liable for any devaluation incurred as a 
result of this proposal Chigwell has a unique character, a wonderful ambience and a very distinct 
identity and developments must be in keeping with the local area so that they respect and protect 
this character.   
 
43, 45 & 47 STRADBROKE DRIVE:  Objection.  The small front garden area will have to 
accommodate the greatly increased activity in building a new house.  Congestion in a narrow cul-
de-sac road.  Construction of the basement may have adverse effects on adjacent house 
foundations and possibly other properties, due to subsidence.  The house is too small for a small 
cul-de-sac with only 4-5 bedroom houses located.  The new house has catering rooms for cinema, 
entertainment lounge etc so is more aligned as a hotel but without parking.  No new property on 

Page 62



this site should exceed the area of the present house above and below ground.    The proposed 
house exceeds it by almost 100% - a matter of great concern to people living in the area.   
 
58 STRADBROKE DRIVE:  Objection. Although scaled down from the previous application, it is 
still far too bulky and needs to be scaled down further.  The new house involves substantial 
excavation to create two levels of sub-basement and I feel that this will cause additional 
subsidence and disruption to the water table.  The existing house has been used for numerous 
parties where guests have arrived by double-decker bus.  By granting consent for an even larger 
house, this will increase further the disruption which is more akin to a commercial concern than a 
domestic concern in a residential street.  If approved, there may be subsequent applications for 
further extensions to be made to further expand the size of the property.   
 
60 STRADBROKE DRIVE:  Objection.  The proposed replacement dwelling would lead to an 
overdevelopment of the site, having a detrimental impact on the street scene in comparison with 
the neighbouring average sized houses.  The scheme would be more suited to Manor Road – the 
design of the building with overpowering colonnaded front entrance, large walking balconies to the 
rear elevation and oversized windows to the front are more suited to community buildings than a 
family house in a small residential street.  The basement will affect the water level and streams in 
the vicinity.  The scale of accommodation such that it could be used for social functions which 
could cause noise disturbance.  The extended footprint of the dwelling and the provision of walking 
balconies at the rear will result in loss of privacy to neighbouring houses on either side and to the 
rear garden in the winter months when there is no protection from the trees.  May set a precedent 
for future developments.   
 
Issues and Considerations:  
  
The main issues to be considered are the impacts of the proposed development on the amenities 
of the occupiers of neighbouring dwellings, on the character and appearance of the area and on 
the protected trees on the site.  Highway issues and the consequences for flood risk are also 
considered below. 
 
Impact on neighbouring dwellings 
 
The height of the dwelling adjacent to the two neighbouring dwellings would increase.   With 
regard to no 46, the proposed dwelling would extend approximately 11.6 metres beyond the rear 
of this property.  However, as it would also be located approximately 11 metres to the side of this 
dwelling (with the full height element approximately 17.4 metres from the dwelling at no. 46), it is 
not considered that there would be a material loss of light or outlook (the proposed dwelling would 
be to the north east of this neighbouring property).  Turning to the impact on no. 54, a greater part 
of the proposed dwelling would be single storey adjacent to this side boundary.  Again, whilst the 
proposed dwelling would extend to the rear of this property, it is considered that it would be set far 
enough away not to cause any material loss of amenity.  The proposed dwelling would be to the 
north west of this neighbouring dwelling and whilst there would be some loss of later 
afternoon/evening sunlight, it is considered that this would be minimal, having regard to the level of 
light achieved at present, due to the existing property.   
 
The dwelling would have a large number of windows, 40 in the front elevation and 28 (albeit 
including a large proportion of full height glazed doors/windows) in the rear.  There would also be a 
long balcony along the width of the two storey element of the rear elevation.  The submitted plans 
indicate screens at either end of the balcony – a planning condition may be imposed to require that 
these are constructed of a solid or obscured material if considered necessary and planning 
permission is granted.  Furthermore, due to the position of the building in relation to neighbouring 
dwellings, it is considered unlikely that there would be a material loss of privacy to either of the 
properties to the side.  
 

Page 63



Whilst there would be a large number of windows facing towards the properties in Manor Road to 
the rear of the site, the application property would retain a garden of approximately 26 metres and 
the properties in Manor Road have gardens of approximately 45 metres in length.  Accordingly, it 
is not considered that there would be a material loss of amenity to these properties.   
 
With regard to the properties opposite, it is generally accepted that the fronts of properties facing 
onto streets have reduced privacy, as they are open to public view.  However, in this case the 
dwellings opposite are located in a cul-de-sac through which there is no through traffic.  When 
considering previous proposals on this site, the view has been taken that the number of windows 
that were proposed and the use of a front balcony would have caused a material loss of amenity to 
properties located on the opposite site of Stradbroke Drive.  However, the number of windows has 
been reduced and the balcony has been omitted from the design.  Having regard to this it is not 
considered that there would be a material loss of privacy to the residents of properties opposite the 
development. 
 
Impact on Character and Appearance of the Area 
 
There have been several planning applications for this site, all with varying designs of dwelling.  
Bearing in mind the number of applications on this site in recent years, it is necessary to consider 
this application in light of the previous submissions.  The 2007 application was refused permission 
on two grounds, firstly the size and bulk and secondly the detailed design including the number of 
windows.   
 
The 2008 application proposed significantly fewer windows in the front elevation and addressed 
this reason for refusal, although the scheme was again refused planning permission on the basis 
of its size and bulk.  Following the refusal of that application, which proposed 2/3 storeys of 
accommodation within the side wings, the applicant was advised to reduce the side wings in height 
to a single storey, although it was accepted that some limited accommodation could be provided 
within the roof space. 
 
Subsequently a revised application was submitted which actually increased the height of the side 
wings (eaves height from 5.2m to 5.5m) to  a full two storeys retaining second floor 
accommodation within the roof space ref EPF/0034/09.  That application also introduced a 
Mansard roof to the main two storey section of the proposed dwelling and increased the number of 
windows to that section from 2 to 6.  It was refused for the same reason as the 2008 application. 
 
A further application EPF/1640/09, refused consent in 2009, stepped down the height of the side 
wings which was considered to be a positive feature, but introduced further sections of Mansard 
roof to the side wings.  It was considered that those revisions were retrograde steps and, overall, 
the quality of design had deteriorated from previous submissions. 
 
The last application, refused planning permission by this Committee in 2010, returned to a more 
classical style of design.  However, design concerns persisted, particularly in relation to the bulk 
and mass of the building and the proposed addition of a two storey portico to the front.   
 
Stradbroke Drive is characterised by large detached houses, although the application property is 
the largest dwelling within the street.  Whilst the proposed dwelling would closely follow the 
footprint of the existing dwelling, it would be larger in terms of its bulk.  However, outline planning 
permission has previously been granted for the erection of three detached dwellings on the site.  
That permission had the design of the dwellings reserved, but it is anticipated that it would have 
led to two-storey buildings on the parts of the site where the current proposal would be single 
storey.  Even though that outline planning permission has since lapsed, the decision to grant 
planning permission remains a material consideration. 
 

Page 64



This application proposes a dwelling which would be considerably wider than the existing in terms 
of its two storey width.  However, moving away from the design of previous proposals, the side 
wings of the dwelling would be kept as single storey elements of the building.  Accordingly, whilst 
the massing of the dwelling has increased in terms of the full height element, a greater degree of 
space would be provided either side of it, due to the reduced scale of the side additions.     
 
The height of the proposed dwelling would be slightly lower than that of no.46, but only because 
number 46 stands at a higher land level.  The dwelling would be substantially (approximately 4m) 
higher than the ridge of no. 54 Stradbroke Drive (although this is due in part to the site level being 
a approximately 2.5m higher).  Whilst the proposed dwelling would be significantly taller than this 
neighbouring property, the full height bulk of the dwelling would be set in form the sides of the site 
by 11m (from the boundary with no. 46) and 12.5m (from the boundary with no 54).  On balance, 
due to these distances and the hipped design of the main roof form, it is not considered that the 
proposed dwelling would appear cramped or, subject to suitable landscaping and tree protection 
measures, appear unacceptably prominent within the street scene.   
 
This proposal includes a cupola and two chimney stacks within the roof of the dwelling, which were 
not present on the previous planning applications.  Whilst these features appear obvious within the 
submitted elevation drawings, if constructed on the proposed building they would appear far less 
prominent within the street scene, by reason of their position on the roof and the distance which 
they would be set back from the front elevation (the cupola would be positioned centrally within the 
roof of the dwellings and the chimneys on the rear roof slope).   
 
The portico feature to which the Committee previously raised objection is still present in this 
revised proposal.  However, it is considered that its prominence within the front elevation is 
reduced by the addition of the two slightly projecting sections of the main dwellings, which create a 
‘book-end’ effect to the building.  Within this context, it is the opinion of officers that the portico has 
an acceptable appearance.   
 
Trees 
 
The site is covered by an ‘area’ Tree Preservation Order which protects all trees which were 
present when the Order was made in 1974.  
 
The submitted Tree Report suggests that there are 3 trees (T15, T21 and T23) to be felled due to 
their condition. However, as the removal of these trees is not necessary to facilitate the proposed 
development, a separate application for consent for their removal will need to be submitted and 
will need to include proposals for their replacement.  This may be dealt with completely separately 
to this application for planning permission for the proposed dwelling.   
 
The remaining trees on site will require careful protection throughout demolition and construction 
activities. Although this is a large site, in terms of the work to be undertaken, given the need for 
welfare facilities and storage of materials, it will be a very tight site. In these situations it is 
appropriate to have regular monitoring of trees and the protective fencing. This may be secured by 
the imposition of a planning condition.   
 
A condition should be imposed to ensure that all excavated material is removed from the site, so 
that it is not deposited elsewhere on the site where it may impact upon existing trees and 
landscaping.  As with any new dwelling, details of hard and soft landscaping should also be 
secured by condition.  
 
Highways and Parking 
 
Concern has been raised by neighbouring residents (and previously by local groups) regarding the 
adequacy of the proposed parking for the new dwelling.  It is understood that there have been 

Page 65



serious difficulties in relation to parking associated with this house recently.  However, it is also 
understood that such incidences have often occurred from uses which do not fall within the lawful 
use of the site as a family dwelling.  This is a matter which needs to be considered outside of the 
Development Control process.  For the purposes of this application, the proposal indicates that 
there would be parking available for 6 vehicles within the basement garage (accessible by car lift) 
and the property frontage appears to be capable of accommodating at least the same number of 
cars again (albeit not independently accessible).  Having regard to the Council’s vehicle parking 
standards, this is considered to be more than adequate.   
 
Flood Risk 
 
Concern has been raised with regard to flooding and water drainage issues arising from the 
proposed basement.  The site lies outside of the flood zones identified by both the Environment 
Agency and also those identified locally by the Council.  However, the development is of a size 
where it is necessary to avoid generating additional runoff and the opportunity of new development 
should be taken to provide existing surface water runoff.  A flood risk assessment is, therefore, 
required.  This may be secured by the use of a planning condition, if permission is granted.    
Further details regarding the proposed disposal of surface water (to avoid generating additional 
surface water run-off) should also be required by the use of a planning condition.  Additionally, the 
Council’s Land Drainage section have also recommended the use of an informative, advising the 
applicant of the potential hydrological and flood implications of the development at basement level.  
This informative advises the applicant that they could be liable for effects on neighbouring 
properties and suggests that they thoroughly investigate the implications of the development.   
 
Conclusion: 
 
In light of the above appraisal, it is considered that the design concerns which have been raised in 
relation to previous applications for a similar development on this site have been addressed 
through this revised proposal.  Whilst the proposed dwelling would be taller than that which exists 
at present and wider across the full height section, the increased bulk of the building is not 
considered to be at a level where it would be detrimental to the visual amenities of the street 
scene, bearing in mind the quite unique context of this triple width plot within the street scene.  
Neighbour concerns relating to the increase in the mass of the dwelling are noted, but it is not 
considered that this element would be detrimental to the street scene.  The proposal is for a large 
dwelling, but the plot is also large and it is not considered that it would be overdeveloped.  
Accordingly, it is considered that the proposed dwelling would not result in any material harm to 
the character and appearance of the area. 
 
The impact of the proposed dwelling on the amenities of neighbouring properties has been 
carefully considered and it is concluded the proposal would not cause any material harm to those 
interests.  Parking is a significant concern for local residents.  However, there is scope for a large 
number of vehicles to park onsite – both within the basement garage and on the property frontage.  
Furthermore, the number of vehicles to be accommodated at the dwelling is not anticipated to be 
greater than those that would have been parked in relation to the three houses which had outline 
planning permission. 
 
It is considered that issues relating to the protected trees within the site and flood risk may be 
suitably dealt with by the use of planning conditions. 
 
Upon balance of the material planning considerations, it is recommended that planning permission 
be granted. 
 
 
 
 

Page 66



 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer:   Mrs Katie Smith 
Direct Line Telephone Number:   (01992) 564109 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 
 

Page 67



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

3 7

51

41

5

4 4

6

45

43

49

47

5 6

6 0

4 8  t o  5 2

5 4

69

G L EN SI D E

*

*

*

**

*

*

*

*

*

*

*
*

**

**

*
*

*

**

*

*

*

*
*

****

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

7 
Application Number: EPF/0516/12 
Site Name: 48 Stradbroke Drive, Chigwell 

IG7 5QZ 
Scale of Plot:  

Page 68



Report Item No: 8 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0601/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 23 Princes Road 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5EE 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: James Swain 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Roof alterations including raising of roof pitch and rear 
dormer. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=536196 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No construction works above ground level shall have taken place until documentary 
and photographic details of the types and colours of the external finishes have been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority, in writing, prior to the 
commencement of the development. The development shall be implemented in 
accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 All construction/demolition works and ancillary operations which are audible at the 
boundary of noise sensitive premises, shall only take place between the hours of 
07.30 to 18.30 Monday to Friday and 08.00 to 13.00 hours on Saturday, and at no 
time during Sundays and Public/Bank Holidays unless otherwise agreed in writing by 
the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises an extended two-storey end-of-terrace house situated on the north 
side of Princes Road, opposite its junction with Forest Edge.  The house has a gabled roof with a 
shallow pitch (25 degrees) while the adjoining house within the terrace, No 21, has a flat roof 
which appears prominent due to the additional width of that house.  It is likely it once had pitched 
roofs but at some point they were replaced with the present flat roofs.  Other neighbouring houses 
have pitched roofs of gabled design with approximately 35 degree pitches. 

Page 69



 
Land rises to the east such that a neighbouring pair of semi-detached houses, 25 and 27 Princes 
Road, are at higher level.  Land also rises to the north with gardens set at a higher level. 
 
The application site is not in a conservation area and there are no heritage assets within its 
vicinity. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
It is proposed to raise the ridge of the existing roof some 0.9m such that it would match the level of 
the ridge at 25 Princes Road.  Its pitch would be increased as a consequence to 35 degrees. 
 
It is also proposed to construct a box dormer on the rear facing roof slope of the enlarged roof.  
The dormer would be set below the ridge of the enlarged roof and 0.5m from the edge of the 
eaves.  Its flanks would be set at the eastern side of an existing chimney that would be retained 
and 150mm from the western gable. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
None 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 
DBE10  Residential Extensions 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 2 
Site notice posted. No, not required 
Responses received: 
 
21 PRINCES ROAD: object to the development for the reasons summarised as follows: 
 

1. The development is not in keeping with the other properties in visible vicinity due to the 
size and design of the box dormer. 

2. The cumulative impact of the proposed dormer and existing two-storey rear extension 
would serve to render the house more out of keeping with others in the vicinity. 

3. The dormer will allow overlooking of the rear garden of 21, which will significantly reduce 
the privacy of the rear garden area. 

4. The creation of an additional room in the roof would be likely to increase the amount of 
noise heard through the party wall. 

5. The process of constructing the development would cause noise and disturbance. 
 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection – “Roof is out of keeping in the area in what 
may be a Conservation Area” 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
Design 
 
The proposed raising of the ridge of the main roof of the house together with the associated 
increase in pitch would complement the design of the existing house and accord with the 
established pattern of development in the locality.  The contrast with the flat roof of the attached 

Page 70



house would be emphasised but that would not be harmful.  The proposed rear dormer would 
generally not be seen from the street, the only vantage point being a very restricted view between 
23 and 25 Princes Road.  In terms of its impact on the street scene, therefore, the proposal would 
respect its character and appearance and consequently is acceptable. 
 
As a type of development box dormers are purely functional.  They are not uncommon on the rear 
facing roof slope houses of this type.  The proposed dormer would be of similar design and size to 
many that are normally constructed as permitted development.  In this case planning permission is 
only required since the dormer relies on the proposed roof enlargement.  The rear elevation of the 
house would appear inconsistent with its immediate neighbours as a consequence of the proposed 
dormer, however, since it would only be seen from private areas, predominantly rear gardens, the 
visual impact is limited and will not affect the public realm.  In the circumstances, and since the 
overall size of the dormer is within the limits of what otherwise would be permitted development, its 
visual impact is acceptable. 
 
The point made by the occupant of 21 Princes Road regarding the cumulative impact of the 
dormer and an existing two-storey projection is not supported since the two developments are 
entirely separate with the ridge of the two-storey addition set below the eaves of the main house.  
Furthermore, large two-storey rear projections are a form of enlargement found generally in the 
locality.  It is not appropriate to link the existing extension to the proposed development in this 
particular case and overall, this proposal is acceptable in design terms on its own merits. 
 
Living Conditions 
 
The proposed rear dormer would facilitate a greater field of view than is available from first floor 
windows, however, that view is from a more remote position at a higher level and it would not take 
in the more private areas of rear neighbouring gardens adjacent to the rear elevation of houses 
since it faces away from them. 
 
Any potential overlooking is also mitigated by structures on neighbouring land and changes in 
levels in rear garden areas.  Aerial photographs of the locality taken in 2010 show the rear garden 
of 21 Princes Road is dominated by a large outbuilding, most probably a double garage, which is 
situated some 10m from the rear elevation taking up most of the garden width.  An inspection of 
the application site also found a pergola has been constructed over that part of the rear garden of 
no. 21 between its boundary with the application site and the outbuilding.  The outbuilding together 
with the pergola would screen views of the adjacent part of rear garden beyond those structures.  
Moreover, since the neighbouring gardens are at higher level than the ground level adjoining the 
rear of neighbouring houses the views from the proposed dormer would not be from a vantage 
point that could give a field of view comparable to a situation where there is no change in levels.  
Having regard to the particular facts of this case it is clear that the proposed rear dormer would not 
give rise to any excessive overlooking of neighbouring gardens. 
 
In respect of the matter of potential noise transmission, while it is likely disturbance during the day 
would occur as a consequence of construction work, the noisy activity of such development would 
be likely to be limited to a few weeks.  That does not amount to a reason to refuse to grant 
planning permission, but it is appropriate to include a condition on any consent given limiting the 
times of construction since the application site is a terraced house. 
 
Once the development is complete it is difficult to see how noise from the proposed room in the 
new roof space could be transmitted to 21 Princes Road through a party wall since the enlarged 
roof would not adjoin any habitable area of no 21 because it has a flat roof.  Even if it did not, 
insulation included with the floor and wall construction that is required under the Building 
Regulations would effectively isolate any noise arising from the use of the new room. 
 

Page 71



On the basis of the above assessment it is concluded that the proposal would not cause any 
excessive harm to the living conditions on any neighbouring property. 
  
Conclusion: 
 
Careful consideration has been given to the objections raised to the proposal and it is concluded 
that they do not justify withholding consent for the proposal.  The proposed development complies 
with relevant policies listed above and it is recommended that planning permission be granted. 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0608/12 

 
 

43.9m

46.3m

50.6m
Car P ark

12

1 7

1

1

2

1 1

1 1
a

7

18

2

1

1 1

1 3

28

2 7  t o  4 3
a

20

1 4

1 3 a

42 40

5 3

4 5

56 52
50

40a

4 5

40

1
3

44a

2 7

Court

12

George

4
1 3

C l
u b

52a

8

31

Works

C h u rc h

3 7
3 3

4 1

14 to 18

3 5 33a

1

PH

9
1 0
1 1

63

3

26

54

52

20
24

PH

70

2
5
6
7

6 5

76

76a

2 9

56

74

6 9

9  
t o

 1
5

1  
t o

 7

4 3

Q U E E N ' S  RO AD

K
I N

G
S  

P L
A C

E

P R I N
C E S

R O A D

B R I A R  C L O S E

*

*

*

*

*

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

8 
Application Number: EPF/0601/12 
Site Name: 23 Princes Road, Buckhurst Hill 

IG9 5EE 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 73



Report Item No: 9 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0608/12 

 
SITE ADDRESS: 181 Princes Road 

Buckhurst Hill 
Essex 
IG9 5DJ 
 

PARISH: Buckhurst Hill 
 

WARD: Buckhurst Hill West 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Mark Cherry  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Loft conversion, raise ridge 600mm with two hip to gable 
roofs, two front pitched roof dormers, one rear pitched dormer 
and first floor pitched roof extension to rear. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=536232 
 
CONDITIONS  
 
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

3 Within 3 months of the substantial completion of the development hereby approved, 
the proposed window opening in the half-dormer in the south-east flank elevation of 
the enlarged rear projection of the house shall be entirely fitted with obscured glass 
and have fixed frames to a height of 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which 
the window is installed and shall be permanently retained in that condition. 
 

 
 
This application is before this Committee since the recommendation differs from the views of the 
local council (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (g) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises a two-storey detached house situated on the north-east side of 
Princes Road, adjacent to its junction with Wimborne Close.  The house has a single-storey and 
part single, part two-storey rear extension.  The main roof is hipped while the two-storey part of the 
existing rear projection has a gabled roof. 
 
The house is set between two much extended detached houses with prominent steeply pitched 
roofs.  The neighbour to the south east, no 179 has a pair of dormer windows to the front slope of 

Page 74



an enlarged roof while 183 is dominated by strong gable features to the front of the roof, rear of 
which is a crown roof. 
 
Land rises to the north-west.  The site is not in a conservation area and there are no heritage 
assets within the vicinity. 
 
Description of Proposal:  
 
It is proposed to convert the hipped main roof of the house to a gabled design, raise its ridge 
600mm and in doing so increase its pitch to 42 degrees.  It is also proposed to raise the ridge of 
the two-storey rear projection to match.  The eaves of the rear projection would also be raised 
600mm.  A single rear dormer and two modest front dormers, all with gabled roofs set below the 
ridge, would also be constructed on the main roof.  The raised roof over the rear projection would 
include an obscure glazed half dormer window in the south east flank. 
 
The proposal would be finished in materials to match the existing house 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1002/04  Single-storey rear extensions  Approved 
CLD/EPF/2293/11 Certificate of lawful development for a proposed hip to gable roof alteration 

and rear dormer window in a loft conversion.  Granted 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP2  Quality of Rural and Built Environment 
DBE9  Loss of Amenity 
DBE10  Residential Extensions 
 
Consultation Carried Out and Summary of Representations Received   
 
Number of neighbours consulted. 23 
Site notice posted. No, not required 
Responses received:  No response from neighbours. 
BUCKHURST HILL PARISH COUNCIL: Objection raised on the basis that the Parish has 
“Concerns that this may be out of keeping with the area in what may be a Conservation Area”. 
 
Main Issues and Considerations: 
 
The proposal is very sympathetically designed and would complement the appearance of the 
house.  Indeed, the proposal is a considerable improvement over the roof enlargement that 
benefits from a certificate of lawfulness since that includes a large box dormer. 
 
The raising of the ridge of the main roof and increasing its pitch would result in the house that 
more closely corresponds to the height and pitch of its immediate neighbours while the proposed 
front dormers would reflect those existing at no. 179 Princes Road.  As a consequence the 
proposal would give the house an appearance that more closely respects the pattern of 
development set by its neighbours thereby enhancing the character and appearance of the 
locality.  Should consent be granted, a condition requiring materials to match those of the existing 
house would serve to secure a complimentary appearance. 
 
Due to the relationship of the house with its immediate neighbours, which have substantial two-
storey rear projections beyond the original rear main wall of 181 Princes Road, there is no 
potential for the proposal to cause any loss of light or give rise to any excessive overlooking.  The 
proposal would therefore safeguard the living conditions of neighbouring properties.  Should 

Page 75



consent be granted, a condition requiring the window in the half dormer of the enlarged rear 
projection would serve to safeguard the privacy of properties to the south-east. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
The proposed development complies with relevant policies listed above and it is recommended 
that planning permission be granted.   
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Stephan Solon 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564018 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

Page 76



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

70.4m

75.0m

77.1m
Fl a ts

M e w s
Q u e e n s

1  t o  7

1 4 7
1 4 7 a

72
74

19
4d

19
4 to

58

147

128

1 4 3

1 5 1

1 2

Tora
Court

W
o r
k s

F a
c t o

r y

1 4 9

143

1 to 8

160a

Court

162

Mirravale

1 3 5

160

144

1 5 5 a

1 to 12

157a

1 5 5

1 5 9

157b

2

157

76

70

1  t o  8

1 4 9
1 4 9 a

Gunnels

Hastingwood
and

1 5 1

170

Court

Court

15
2

14
6

1

5

1 7 9

1 6 9

86
84

98

178

176c

Library

176a

1 5 9

1 5

30

2

El
Sub Sta

4

1 3

3
1

16
8

1 9 1

15
8a

15
4

16
0

1 6
8 a

189
15
8

184 186

Bank

P O

175

188 to
192

182

1 7 1

1 6
8 b

17
0

10

2 1

20
18

1 5

12

19
6

17
6

179

W I M B O R
N E

C L
O S

E

W O O DS IDE

W I MB O R N E  C L O S E

Park
CarEFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee South 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

9 
Application Number: EPF/0608/12 
Site Name: 181 Princes Road, Buckhurst Hill 

IG9 5DJ 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 77



Page 78

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	Plans South Map
	Area Planning Subcommittee South - members photo sheet 12-13

	4 Minutes
	8 Development Control
	South 30 May 2012


